
 

 

 

 

AGENDA 

WARRENTON PLANNING COMMISSION 
Regular Meeting | April 13, 2023 | 6:00pm 

Warrenton City Hall Commission Chambers | 225 S Main Avenue, Warrenton, OR 97146 

***The meeting will be broadcast via Zoom at the following link*** 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89594092173?pwd=VG5sMFFTVExqTWl1dXVXSTBFbWw2UT09 

Meeting ID: 851 4280 5492 | Passcode: 12345 | Dial in number: 253-215-8782 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 
2. ATTENDANCE 

 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission Regular Minutes – 3.9.23 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, anyone wishing to address the Planning Commission concerning items of interest may do so. The 
person addressing the Planning Commission must complete a Public Comment Card and submit it to the 
Secretary prior to the meeting. All comments will be addressed to the whole Planning Commission and limited 
to 3 minutes per person. Public Comments may also be submitted by email to the Secretary, 
rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us, no later than 4:00 p.m. the day of the meeting. The Planning Commission 
reserves the right to delay any action, if required, until such time as they are fully informed on a matter. 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING  
A. Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1 at 590 Seventh Ave (tax lot 81008AA05000) 
B. Comprehensive Plan Amendment CPA-23-1  
C. Annexation ANX-23-1 

 
6. BUSINESS ITEMS - None 

 
7. DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Draft Cap on Mini Storage Units 
  

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER 
A. What is Placemaking? 

 
9. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Next Regular Meeting: May 11, 2023 

 
Warrenton City Hall is accessible to the disabled. An interpreter for the hearing impaired may be requested under the terms of ORS 192.630 by 
contacting Dawne Shaw, City Recorder, at 503-861-0823 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting so appropriate assistance can be provided. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89594092173?pwd=VG5sMFFTVExqTWl1dXVXSTBFbWw2UT09
mailto:rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us


MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 3.9.23 

Page: 1 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 

March 9, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 

Warrenton City Hall - Commission Chambers 

225 S. Main 

Warrenton, OR 97146

Chair Hayward called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. Commissioner Bridgens led the public in 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 

Commissioners Present: Kevin Swanson, Christine Bridgens, Chris Hayward, Jessica Sollaccio, 

Karin Hopper, and Lylla Gaebel 

Absent: Mike Moha 

Staff Present: Planning Director Jay Blake and Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

A. Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – 1.12.23

Commissioner Bridgens made a motion to approve the minutes. Motion was seconded and 

passed unanimously.  

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–aye; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; Gaebel – aye 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS – None

5. PUBLC HEARINGS – None

6. BUSINESS ITEMS – None

7. DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Home Occupation Code Amendment

Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler presented concerns with the current Home Occupation 

code and requested feedback from the Planning Commission to guide a code update. Ms. 

Sprengeler noted regulations differences compared to Astoria, Seaside, and Gearhart. Mr. Blake 

shared an example of a business with several business-related vehicles parked on the street that 

have led to multiple neighborhood complaints. Clarifying the code would help with enforcement. 

The commission had concerns about the number vehicles associated with home occupations. 

Commissioner Gaebel feels 3 commercial deliveries per day and operational hours are excessive; 

6pm would be more reasonable. Discussion followed about commercial deliveries and providing 

adequate off-street parking. There could be restrictions on certain zones. Commissioner Hopper 

3.A

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 2 of 122



 

MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 3.9.23 

Page: 2 

would like to see a limit on the number of total vehicles on site including customers, deliveries, 

and personal vehicles. There was discussion about considerations for pet-sitting, childcare, and 

catering. There was a brief discussion about signage; this will be left up to the sign code task 

force. Bed and breakfasts, vacation rentals, and homestay lodging may be addressed under a 

separate code change for short-term rentals. A code enforcement officer position may be created 

to assist with efficiently addressing violations.   

 

B.  Ministorage Policies Code Amendment 

 

Planning Director Jay Blake presented a potential code update related to ministorage. At the last 

meeting there was a discussion about not revisiting the ministorage code criteria. Staff have since 

received a preliminary request for a new ministorage facility on an ideal piece of industrial land. 

After some discussion with the applicant, the city manager requested that Mr. Blake review the 

design standards. He presented a ministorage analysis in Clatsop County. Warrenton has more 

ministorage units than any other jurisdiction in the area combined. Ministorage facilities do not 

require city utilities, do not produce a high tax base, or support the long-term goals of the 

comprehensive plan by creating job opportunities. Discussion followed about a previously 

approved ministorage facility on Dolphin that used shipping containers. Mr. Blake noted 

conditional use permits can be challenging to deny. Commissioner Gaebel noted the 

development standards to improve previous requests. There was brief discussion about the 

difference between general commercial and industrial uses related to the tax rates. Mr. Blake also 

discussed an analysis of tax-exempt properties in Warrenton totaling over 70%. He cautioned 

that most land uses are long term, not temporary. It is important to consider how land is 

developed to create jobs and return money to the community through taxes. A general discussion 

followed about taxes, industrial applications, and a cap on storage units in Warrenton.  

 

Commissioner Sollaccio made a motion for staff to draft an ordinance for a cap on 

ministorage. Motion was seconded. Discussion followed about a moratorium versus a cap. 

Commissioner Sollaccio would like a moratorium while researching a cap. There was brief 

discussion about shipping containers. Motion passed unanimously.  

 

Swanson–aye; Bridgens–aye; Hayward–nay; Sollaccio–aye; Hopper–aye; Gaebel – aye  

  

C.  Grading Permit Code Amendment 

 

Mr. Blake presented a potential contract with CREST to update the grading code. An ordinance 

will come back in May. Discussion followed about exemptions, landscaping, and definitions. 

 

D. Shipping Container Code Amendment 

 

Commissioner Bridgens noted several photos of shipping containers on City property. Ms. 

Sprengeler presented concerns with the lack of regulation on shipping/cargo containers for a 

variety of uses. Recent inquiries include residential storage, commercial storage, hydroponic 

gardens, and short-term rentals. Discussion followed about ADU’s and the code examples from 

other cities. There was concern about enforcement. There was concern about restricting the 

creative use of shipping containers. It was suggested that containers be made attractive by 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 3 of 122



MINUTES 

Warrenton Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting – 3.9.23 

Page: 3 

painting the same color as the structure. There should be different criteria in commercial and 

industrial zones. Containers in residential zones should be prohibited or only allowed when 

moving.  

8. GOOD OF THE ORDER

Commissioner Sollaccio noted a T-Mobile main street grant opportunity.  

Mr. Blake will be meeting with the County for a neighborhood plan for Ensign Lane. 

Commissioner Hopper asked about established districts in Warrenton. Mr. Blake confirmed there 

is a historic district that is not clearly defined. Commissioner Hopper would like to create 

districts to support the identity of Warrenton.  

Ms. Sprengeler reminded the commissioners of an upcoming League of Oregon Cities training. 

There being no further business, Chair Hayward adjourned the meeting at 7:30 p.m.  

APPROVED: 

___________________________ 

ATTEST: Chris Hayward, Chair 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca Sprengeler, Secretary 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 4 of 122



City of Warrenton
Planning Department 
225 S Main Avenue     P.O. Box 250     Warrenton. OR 97146 
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351 

STAFF REPORT 
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commission 
FROM: Rebecca Sprengeler, Planning Technician 
DATE: April 13, 2023 
SUBJ: Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1: 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 

81008AA05000)  

BACKGROUND: 

Don Peck is the property owner of 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 81008AA05000). He submitted 
a wetland hardship variance application to build a new single-family home within the locally 
significant wetland boundaries on the property.  

PUBLIC PROCESS, PROCEDURES & PUBLIC NOTICE: 

Applicable Warrenton Municipal Code (WMC) chapters for this modification include: 
WMC 16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial). 
WMC 16.32 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-M) DISTRICT 
WMC 16.156 WETLAND AND RIPARIAN CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

5.A

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 5 of 122

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_4-chapter_16_208-16_208_050
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_32?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_32?view=all


Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1: 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 81008AA05000) 
Staff Report Page: 2 
 

 

The application was submitted on February 9, 2023. The application was accepted on February 10, 2023. 
The application was deemed complete on March 6, 2023. Public Notice letters were sent to affected 
property owners on March 22, 2023, and published in The Astorian on March 25, 2023. As of April 6, 
2023, 1 public comment was received.  

CODE PROVISIONS, APPLICANT RESPONSES, AND FINDINGS: 

Chapter 16.32 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-M) DISTRICT 
16.32.020 Permitted Uses. 

A.    Single-family detached dwelling.  
Staff finding:  The proposed future use is allowed in this zone provided it meets the 
development standards. These will be reviewed at the time of Building permit.  
 
16.156 WETLAND AND RIPARIAN CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
16.156.030 Wetland Area Development Standards. 

B.     Applications to the City of Warrenton for grading or building permits that would authorize 
development within a jurisdictional wetland boundary approved by the Oregon Department of 
State Lands shall contain the following: 

1.     A State of Oregon Wetland Removal-Fill Authorization. 
2.     Written verification from the Warrenton Community Development Director, or 
designee, that the affected wetland area is classified as “non-significant” per the City of 
Warrenton Locally Significant Wetland Map dated October 17, 1997. Alternatively, for 
development in a “significant” wetland, a City of Warrenton Hardship Variance (see 
Section 16.156.080) must be obtained instead of the Community Development Director’s 
written verification. 

Staff finding:  The applicant has not submitted for building permits yet. He is working to obtain a 
wetland hardship variance from the city and in the process of obtaining a State of Oregon Wetland 
Removal-Fill Authorization from the Department of State Lands.  
 

E      The City of Warrenton will notify the Oregon Department of State Lands of 
applications for preliminary plat, partition, planned unit development, conditional use, 
site design review, variance, or temporary building permits, and grading and building 
permits that appear to affect a wetland on the City of Warrenton Wetland Conservation 
Plan Inventory (Local Wetland Inventory) dated October 17, 1997 or other waters. (Ord. 
1183-A § 1, 2013) 

Staff finding:  The Department of State Lands was notified of the variance request on March 22, 2023. 
Approval of the variance shall be conditioned on the Department of State Lands requirements being 
met. This criterion was met.  

 
16.156.040 Significant Wetland Area Development Standards. 

A.    The following additional development standards shall apply to all development in 
significant wetlands as designated on the City of Warrenton Locally Significant Wetland 
Map dated January 21, 2004. 
B.     Alteration of a significant wetland or portion of a significant wetland by grading, 
excavating, placement of fill including structures, and removal of vegetation, shall be 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 6 of 122

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_2-chapter_16_32?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_3-chapter_16_156?view=all
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_3-chapter_16_156?view=all#:~:text=Urban%20Growth%20Area.-,16.156.030%20Wetland%20Area%20Development%20Standards.,-Wetland%20areas%20in
https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_3-chapter_16_156?view=all#:~:text=A%20%C2%A7%201%2C%202013)-,16.156.040%20Significant%20Wetland%20Area%20Development%20Standards.,-A.%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0


Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1: 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 81008AA05000) 
Staff Report Page: 3 
 

 

prohibited, except for the following uses, upon demonstration that the uses are designed 
and constructed to minimize intrusion into the wetland area: 

7.     Uses authorized by an approved City of Warrenton hardship variance in 
conjunction with a valid State of Oregon Wetland Removal-Fill Authorization. 

Staff finding:  The use may only be allowed with both approval of this variance and approval of a State 
of Oregon Wetland Removal-Fill Authorization. Should the Planning Commission approve the variance 
application, staff would recommend Condition of Approval #1 permitting the variance subject to 
approval by the Department of State Lands. The applicant has stated in the application that “Wetlands 
study will remain marked as draft until approved by the State, which will follow upon approval.” The 
applicant is also proposing the structure be constructed as close to the East end of the property as 
setbacks will allow to minimize intrusion into the wetland area. These criteria will be met by conditions 
of approval. 

 
16.156.080 Hardship Variance Procedure and Criteria. 

A.    For any lands demonstrated to have been rendered not buildable by application of 
this chapter, the property owner may apply for a hardship variance for relief from the 
restrictions of this chapter. 
B.     Hardship variance applications are subject to review in accordance with the 
standards of Section 16.208.050, Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial). Granting of a 
hardship variance requires that: 

1. The proposed development represents a reasonable and legal use of the lot 
or parcel, considering the zoning. 

Applicant Response: The proposed development is for a single-family home and is within the 
current zoning requirements.  
Staff finding:  There was once a house on the property as shown in the County Tax Assessor’s 
records. The proposed use is a new single-family dwelling. The RM zone allowed for this and 
multiple other types of residential use. The neighborhood is also developed as residential with 
duplexes to the east, single family homes to the south, apartments to the north, and single-
family homes to the west. The proposed use is reasonable for this zone. This criterion is met. 

 
2.     Strict adherence to this chapter and other applicable standards would 
effectively preclude a use of the parcel that could be reasonably expected to 
occur in similarly zoned parcels. 

Applicant Response: The variance required per this code section is required due to the existing 
wetlands. We are seeking to build on a portion of the wetlands as shown on the attached site 
plans. All work will be performed within the State of Oregon’s requirements for wetlands.  
Staff finding:  The two wetlands shown in the draft wetland delineation report are described as 
0.155 acres. The tax lot is 0.31 acres. The wetland area covers approximately 50% of the lot 
area. The minimum lot size for a single-family dwelling in the RM zone is 5000 sf. This tax lot is 
just over 13,300 sf. When asked about the size of the home, the applicant responded that “The 
house we are designing wanting is 2,262 sf 2 story with a large garage that is 2550 sf to provide 
enclosed parking for a boat. The over all dimension of the entire structure is 78’ x 50’ and there 
is a covered porch area that is 20’x20’ that projects out the far west end of the structure.”  If 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 7 of 122

https://library.qcode.us/lib/warrenton_or/pub/municipal_code/item/title_16-division_3-chapter_16_156?view=all#title_16-division_3-chapter_16_156-16_156_080


Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1: 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 81008AA05000) 
Staff Report Page: 4 
 

 

the lot were to be developed outside of the wetland boundaries, the size of the proposed home 
would be severely reduced and restricted. This criterion is met.  

 
3.     The property owner would be precluded a substantial property right enjoyed 
by the majority of landowners in the vicinity. 

Applicant Response: Yes, we would forgo a substantial right enjoyed by all properties in this 
area. Without the variance this lot is unbuildable. The proposed plan is to build a single-family 
unit similar to all neighboring parcels. Please note that this is currently the only vacant lot in the 
immediate area.  
Staff finding:  The surrounding properties are in the same Medium Density Residential zone and 
the High-Density Residential zone. They have been developed with single family homes, 
duplexes, and an apartment complex to the north. The proposed use of the property is 
substantially enjoyed by the majority of surrounding property owners. This criterion is met.  

 
4.     The variance is the minimum necessary to retain use of the property. 

Applicant Response: We are asking for the minimum variance required to build a single-family 
dwelling on this tax lot. We have laid out the building to minimize impacts to the existing 
wetlands (see attached site plan) and will have opportunities to mitigate some of the wetlands 
on site. Upon approval from the city to proceed, we will work with the State of Oregon to meet 
all requirements of the wetlands mitigation.  
Staff finding:  The lot exceeds the minimum lot size for a single family home by 8,000 sf. This lot 
is 13,333 sf. The minimum lot width for an SFR is 50’, this lot is approximately 133.32’ wide. The 
minimum lot depth is 70’, this lot is 100’ deep. The maximum lot coverage by buildings is 40%, 
the applicant is proposing coverage of 4,300 sf (house and deck footprint) which is 
approximately 32% lot coverage. The applicant has proposed the structure be placed as far East 
and away from the wetland as the property setbacks will allow with the existing structure size. 
This criterion is met.  

 
5.     Granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public 
welfare or be injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of the 
premises. 

Applicant Response: The proposed single-family unit will not be detrimental or injurious to any 
of the neighboring properties and will be built to “blend” in with the type of structures in the 
area.  
Staff finding:  The use of the property will be residential and similar to that of surrounding 
properties. Upon a site visit on March 22, 2023, staff saw that the site is lower than adjacent 
properties. The applicant will need to ensure that the development does not create any 
additional stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. The applicant shall comply with WMC 
16.140 STORMWATER AND SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT. This criterion will be met be 
conditions of approval.  

 
6.     The variance will be in general harmony with the intent and purpose of this 
chapter, and will not adversely affect any officially adopted Comprehensive Plan 
policy. 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 8 of 122



Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1: 590 Seventh Avenue (Tax lot 81008AA05000) 
Staff Report Page: 5 

Applicant Response: The proposed plan to build a single-family unit on this lot will be in 
harmony with the intent of this chapter and will not affect the comprehensive plan policy in any 
adverse way.  
Staff finding:  The review of the applicable Warrenton Municipal Code criteria has been 
completed. The WMC is reviewed by the Department of Land Conservation and Development 
(DLCD) for compliance with the adopted Comprehensive Plan policies. Findings of compliance 
with the WMC will not adversely affect the Comprehensive Plan. Further, the Comprehensive 
Plan states “…wetland and riparian corridor mitigation, restoration creation and enhancement 
shall be allowed in all zoning district where practicable” Article 4 Natural Features, Section 
4.100 Findings. This criterion will be met if the variance is approved by the Planning 
Commission. 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 

The proposed use is similar to character and use of the surrounding neighborhood. Staff have 
found that the applicant is in compliance with the applicable standards subject to the below 
conditions of approval. 

Conditions of Approval: 

1. The variance approval is only valid in conjunction with a valid State of Oregon Wetland
Removal-Fill Authorization. The applicant shall submit a copy of a valid Wetland
Removal-Fill Authorization to the City of Warrenton Planning Department prior to
issuance of Building permits.

2. The applicant will need to ensure that the development does not create any additional
stormwater runoff onto adjacent properties. The applicant shall comply with WMC
16.140 STORMWATER AND SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT.

Recommended Motion: 

“I move to approved Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1 at 590 Seventh Ave in Hammond on 
taxlot 81008AA05000 for the construction of a new single family dwelling. This approval is 
subject to findings of fact and conditions of approval in the staff report date April 13, 2023 and 
the submittals and testimony at this meeting.”  

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Application
2. Site Plan
3. Draft Wetland Delineation
4. Public Notices
5. Public Comment(s)

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 9 of 122

https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_amp_economic_development/page/6977/comprehensive_plan.pdf
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/sites/default/files/fileattachments/community_amp_economic_development/page/6977/comprehensive_plan.pdf


CITYOFWARRENTON
PLANNING AND BUILDING DEPARTMENT

Telephone: 503-861-0920

HARDSHIP VARIANCE APPLICATION
Warrcnton Development Code - SccUon 16.156.080

Application fee ( non-refundable); ^ ( 1.5Q City File No.; V-_22^

NOTE: The applicant must complete sections I, II, and III below and submit the required application fee
before staff can accept the application.

I. APPLICATION/OWNER INFORMATION:

Applicant: 0^ \ ^ ^R.tt^ ^e^-^ _ Phone: c> o ^•»?1'-1 • ^(?I3>^

Mailing Address: ^ZQS'S) l-o^^ca. L-*-t Ayioltt^ 0(^ ^1»t»*>

Applicant Signature: ^»-*- l&^cA /// _ Dates

Owner: C^ ?i£^t^ __ Phone: S'a% ••Sl^'t/SS*/

Mailing Address:

Owner Signature (if different than applicant):.
Signed written authnri^atinn hy the property owner nfrecnrd mny he snhKtitut^ here.

II, PROPERTY INFORMATION:

Address: ^?A ~1-1 A\/& ^ V.\^^Wc^& 0^ Nearest Cross Street: "I ^ "^'LeC-l

Assessor P^rc^l No,; TwpS^Hng ;LOW. Soction _.yaKLot ^>\000^R. 0^'0>">^>

Legal uescriptioii:'LB:K. lf:»,lL:>i^ ^ \% / ^WJ^ ^ (N?W ^^-T&S./A.

Lot Size: {'^^yS-'^y = O.'3l ACBAS Date Current Owner Took Ownership: ^ |^i 7Z-

Current Use of Property; \/A(L^A*^*~T t—frMO

III. VARIANCE INFORMATION:

Describe the Requested Variance (i.e., what is tlie proposed use and why does the proposal require
impacts to wetlands):
C^-KarilHJ^J-1 A?l*-ll«U£ F"^1^1L^ IX^&LUlJ^. ^1 ^Vl-LC. \^H-\- MD-f

Al-LAU/ &yiLO/*Jt- ^l~7Hff^~l ^Ajf.aOAC.LLrteU-7 JU U/K-ILJHJD AC.^-A.

<3Q£ A-77JK^C-0 6/-7& ^^^.

Page lot 2

APPLICATION

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 10 of 122



Written Responses to the Six Hardship Variance Criteria of Wan'enton Municipal Code Section
16.156.080B (see below) nro necessary.

A. For any Innds demonstrated to have been rendered not buildnblc by application of this chapter, the
property owner may .ipply for a hardship variance for relief from the restrictions of this chnpter.

B. Hardslilp varlanci; applications ^^re suljjecl to review in accordance with the standards of Section 16,208.050,

Type III procedure (Qiiasi-Iucticial). Granting of a liarrisliip variance requires that:

1. Tlie proposed development represents a reasonable and legal use of tlie lot or parcel, considering the zoning.

2. Strict adherence to tliis chapter mid other applicable standards would effectively preclude a use of the parcel
that could be reasonably expected to occur in similarly zoned parcels.

3. The property owner would be precluded a substantial propct'ty right enjoyed by the majority of landowners in
the vicinity.

4. The variance is the mini mum necessary to retain use of the property.

5. Granting ofthu variance will not be materially (Ictrimctttal to the public welfare or tie injurious to property or

iinpi-oveniettts In llietielgliborliooduft1iepremise5.

6. The variance will be tn general harmony with the intent and purpose of this chapter, and will not adversely
affect any officially adopted Comprehensive Plan policy.

Is a Site plan* Attached? p^Ves ( ) No
*A site plan is required and nwst he drawn to scale, contain a north pointSng arrow, slww wetland boundaries (as scaled fram the City s ioca]
Wetland Inventory (iWl) map, or as professionaSty delineated), and show all setback distances from existing and proposed stnicttires and
roflt/s to wetlands and property lines.

Has a State / Federal Wetland Removal / Fill Permit Application been made for this project?

Q Yes 0^No;'Ifyes, what is the status? . ________ _

Additional Information; VlknL-JL^o^ An<^ w^i^ tt.cit^ti^ MikAKffQ /%*» u'a^e'L

^h<in- A^?B*VCO n>^ Tfte •*nN-rfe hjttiLU \^ILL. CSULUA/ op»*-t t^yyedVA<^
' ***Do not write below tins line***

Comments:

Date Paid / Receiptff _, Received by:,

Date applicant was provided written notification of additional infm'mation needed:

Hate fifiditinnnl mfnrmatian \vns received'^

Comments: _____ __

Date application was deemed complete:

PageZof 2

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 11 of 122



CityofWarrenton

Six Hardship Variance Criteria
590 7th Ave, Hammond OR; Tax Lot 81008AA05000

1. The proposed development represents a reasonable and legal use of the lot or parcel,

considering the zoning.

• The proposed development is for a single-family home and is within the current zoning

requirements.

2. Strict adherence to this chapter and other applicable standards would effectively preclude a

use of the parcel that could be reasonably expected to occur in similarly zone parcels.

• The variance required per this code section is required due to the existing wetlands. We are

seeking to build on a portion of the wetlands as shown on the attached site plans. All work

will be performed within the State of Oregon's requirements for wetlands.

3. The property owner would be precluded a substantial right enjoyed by the majority of

landowners En the vicinity.

• Yes, we wouid forgo a substantial right enjoyed by ail properties in this area. Without the

variance this !ot is unbuildable. The proposed plan is to build a single-family unit similar to
all neighboring parcels. Please note that this is currently the only vacant iot in the

immediate area.

4. The variance is the minimum to retain use of the property.

• We are asking for the minimum variance required to build a single-family dwelling on this

tax iot. We have iaid out the building to minimize impacts to the existing wetlands (see

attached site plan) and wi!! have opportunities to mitigate some of the wetlands on site.

Upon approval from the city to proceed/ we will work with the State of Oregon to meet all

requirements of the wetlands mitigation.

5. Granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the public welfare or be

injurious to property or improvements in the neighborhood of these premises.

• The proposed single-family unit will not be detriments! or injurious to any of the

neighboring properties and will be buiit to biend in with the type of structures in the area.

6. The variance will be in general harmony with the intent and purpose of this chapter, and will

not adversely affect any officially adopted Comprehensive Plan policy.

• The proposed plan to buiid a single-famiiy unit on this lot will be En harmony with the intent

of this chapter and will not affect the comprehensive plan poiicy in any adverse way.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 12 of 122



LEGEND
mti-ny

PCnAER

WlTEIi

SEWER

RAIN OFWIN3

UNETWE

SITE AND EROSION CONTROL NOTES

ALl.BACKFU.LUUTOWLTOBELOCW.

BOys^O mRTTOBEGCn/EBEOWITH STRAW
t WWOUHtHC, CCUSTHUCT10N
SAC3<F1U, STOCK PUuES 70 SE COVEFIED WtTH SHRA'k

r'l'.MIWUS TO BE CCUPACTEDINALL FQUHSA'nOkt
AREAS'" "

E. AU. SRMIE SUWES < St

1. RQUWUySTOBECLEHNEDWTCFIaooUT

imwww, PATIO utEW. uwumwrs, ANO QAnicE

ISSSI

Hi
u
.2:
LLJ
Q
co
IU
Q;

1§1£
.?̂=0

c
0

"0
D

i !p,
CL>

CCs

nSKTO'UKf N[N0 ? COKCTFtUCTlON.

A0.1

SITE PLAN

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 13 of 122



—SW Ditch (ROW
./.no_[mpacl)J

0.006-ac.
/cufverted)'
0.003-ac.

WL A (ROW I
no impact)
-0:016:ac-

WLAfTLSOCXH
Pattowfflti)
O.OIS.ac. !

Wetland A (WL
A) (TL 5000 &

ROW)OJ55-ac. ^

WLAtTLSOOU
I no Impact)

0.09-ac. WLAfTLSOOO/
house fool print)

0.033-ac.

r^O^°

Wetland B (TL 5000 /
no impact) O.OOG-ac.

Ciatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quactrengle:

Warrcnton, OR, 16123-88
NAD 1983 HARM StatePlane

Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet
Inti

')6.196S<N 123.9431'>W

jI Water
II Wetland

C— stu[iyAI'ea

Tax Lot

•:9hiap Esri^nGISOr.iM
ewswd Fetruiry 2023

UF<lai.--d 2.3 20^3
f'ro.cc! tlo f6Sf6

L3^jt V/D_Rt;SU;;i_Rol3'0
Apr.: 7E&76_AR

Source; Wetland dellneatton data weie mapped to sub.meler accufacy by SWCA using ArcGIS
Field Maps and a Juniper Geode GNSS receiver on Januaiy 6,2023.

Figure 1. Existing wetlands and stormwater ditch over proposed dev, (N.T.S.). Est impacts of
-0'048-acres (Wetland A 0.045 of 0.155 tot. / SW Ditch 0.003 of 0.009 tot).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 14 of 122



Peck Property
Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters
Delineation Report

FEBRUARY 2023

PREPARED BY

SWCA Environmental Consultants

DRAFT DELINEATION

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 15 of 122



PECK PROPERTY WETLAND AND NON-WETLAND WATERS
DELINEATION REPORT

TOWNSHIP 8 NORTH, RANGE 10 WEST, SECTION 8,
TAX LOT 5000 AND ROW (PORTION), CLATSOP COUNTY,

WARRENTON, OREGON

Prepared.

DKPeck Proi
Attn. Don Pedt

4205i|^nfiN-an1

.Prepared by

Environmental Consultants
INW Upshur Street, Suite 100

Portland, Oregon 97209
(503) 224-0333
www.swca.com

SWCA Project No. 78576

February 2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 16 of 122



Peek Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

CONTENTS

Introduction..............................................................<...........................<«..•..................<.............................^ 1

A. Landscape Setting and Land Use............................................................................<„........•..•....•........<. 1

B. Site Alterations ..................................................................................................................................... 1

C. Precipitation Dats »nd Analysis .................................................................................................. 1

D. Methods................................................................»....».........«...«......»....».....................................^

E. Description of All Wetlands and Other Non-WetIand Waters........................................................... 3

Wetlands................................................................................................................................................^

Wetland A (0.16 acre/6,970 square feet)......................................................................................... 3

Wetland B (0.01 acre/436 square feet)............................................................................................. 4

Non-WetlandWaters.............................................................................................................................. 4

Stormwater Ditch 1 (118.35 linear feet)...................................^t................................................. 4

Uplands......................................................................................^^^............................................

F. Deviation from LWI and NWI..............................................^.....^^,....................«.»«.»»....«»...« 4

G. Mapping Method...........................................................,^^...................^^^.....................................<. 5

H. Additional Information ...........................................<ff".........,^.......................................................... 5

I. Results and Conclusions ...............................................^^^,............................................................... 5

J. Required Disclaimer.....................................^^^^y,..........^^^....................*..*•.*•..•<•.*•<*.<•.*•<*.•<*••**•....• 5

K. List of Preparers ............................................^......^^^^..:..........................«..»..........«»...».«...... S

L. Literature Cited and Reviewed ....^^^A.........^^:............................................................................. 7

Appendices

Appendix A. Aerial Phjjjlgraphs
Appendix B. Precipitati^pata
Appendix C. Wetland Det'B|||[nation||1ita Forms
Appendix D. Ground-Level ^^^Rgraphs
Appendix E. Vegetation List
Appendix F. Local Wetland Inventory Information

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 17 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wefiand Waters Deiineation Report

Figures

Figure 1. Site location map. ..........................................................................................................................9

Figure 2. Tax lot map (aerial base)............................................................................................................. 10

Figure 3. Tax lot map (paper base)............................................................................................................. 11

Figure 4. Soils map..................................................................................................................................... 12

Figure 5. Local Wetlands Inventory map. .................................................................................................. 13

Figure 6. National Wetlands Inventory map. .............................................................................................. 14

Figure 7. Wetiand and other waters delineation map (aerial base). ............................................................ 15

Tables

Table 1. Precipitation Data-Monthly Averages Based on the Climate ^iod 1991-2020........................ 2

Table 2. Precipitation Summary..........................................................^^...................................................2

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 18 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

INTRODUCTION

On behalf of DKPeck Properties, SWCA Environ mental Consultants (SWCA) conducted a wetland
delineation of the 0.37-acre study area located at 590 7th Avenue, Hammond, Oregon (Figure 1). Though

the site address is for Hammond, the study area is located within the Warrenton, Oregon, city limits. The
study area is Tax Lot 5000 and a 20-foot offset into the public right-of-way (ROW) to the northeast to

meet the edge of roadway for 7th Avenue on Tax Map 81008AA05000, CIatsop County (Figures 2 and
3). The centroid latitude and longitudeofthestudyareaare46.1964and-123.9430. Fieldwork was

conducted on January 6, 2023.

This report presents the results of the delineation of two wetlands (Wetlands A and B) and one

stormwater ditch.

A. LANDSCAPE SETTING AND LAND US
OAR141 -090-0035 (12)(a)

Tlie general area landform is a broad flat terrace that meets the Q^JffinB|yUver to the northeast and a
large National Wetlands Inventory (NWI)-mapped wetland cggiplex to tHIH^rthwest, south, and
southeast (U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service [USFWS] 2023y|ITe study area i^^ierally flat, with
topography gently sloping upwards northeast of Wetlan^^and sg|theast ofWHtlandB into upland. The
surrounding area is at the same elevation as the uplands ^U.^^'study area, with the wetlands forming

in areas of slightly lower topography from the surrounding llgljscape. The study area is zoned as low-

medium density residential, with the surroundin^J|^^gi the ni^^/est, west, south, and southeast zoned

the same and the land to the northeast zoned highllgnstf^BliV^nflIt. Currently, the study area is an
lot with maintained and cut vegetation, the majori^^f^?ic1^^^ears mown with some areas of taller
vegetation where lamp rush {Jimcus ^||IIS^||^s be^lgSllowed to grow but broad-leaf cat-tai I {Typha
latifolia) has been removed approxj^FFely 6||ches a^ve the soil surface. There are two small patches of

an^iitiaciis}S^^!3iQll\V^nd west comers of the lot. The land pi'(

appears to have been used as a forest^^^^entlaIT^ A portion of the study area site is proposed for
residential development.

B. SITE ALTEHiJIONi
OAR141 -090-0035 (10)(a-b). (f2^

According to the Oregon Histori'E^Landuse and Landcover (Oregon Explorer 2023), the study area and
surrounding area was historically hardwood-conifer swamp. The study area has been significantly altered

from this historical condition. A single-family residence used to exist on the southeast portion of the study

area surrounded by forest vegetation, according to aerial imagery. The residence, along with the trees and

shrubs on the property, were removed sometime between 2009 and 2011 (Appendix A). One stormwater
ditch enters the lot through a culvert at the north corner, enters another culvert under an access drive onto

the property, and exits the property through a culvert in the east corner.

C. PRECIPITATION DATA AND ANALYSIS
OA R 141-090-0035 (12)(c)

The wetlands climate analysis (WETS) station and observed precipitation data for the study area were

obtained from the Astoria Regional Aifport-AST, Oregon, station (National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration [NOAA] 2023. Average annual rainfatl according to the WETS table for the station is

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 19 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wefland l/l/ate/'s Delineation Report

70.26 inches, and the growing season is February 5 to December 15. Table 1 shows the monthly precipi-
tation averages and observed preclpitation for the 3 months prior to SWCA's Januaiy 6, 2023, site visit.

Table 1. PrecipEtation Data-Monthly Averages Based on the Climate Period 1991-2020

Month Average
(inches)

30% Chance Will Have

Less Than More Than

(inches)

Observed
Precipitation

(inches)

Within Normal Range?

December

November

October

10.68

11.05

6.74

8.32

7.89

4.43

12.34

13.06

8.09

11.54

12.39

4.29

Within normai (108%)

Within normal (112%)

Below normal (63%)

Source; NOAA (2023).

Tabie 2 shows precipitation on the day of the field visit, 2 weeks prior^jliter year to date (WYTD),
calendar year to date (CYTD), and normal values.

Table 2. Precipitation Summary

Field Visit Date Observed Precipitation (inches)

Day of 2 Weeks
Prior

WYTD

"^
TD NormalVatue
(percentage of

normal)

CYTD Normal Value
(percentage of

normal)

January 6,2023 0.40 8.81 28.701 30.28 (95%) 1.81 (26%)

Source; NOAA (2023).
-"ssy

Using the standard template for ant^^ent r®fall (^Upendix B), these data show that the overall
preceding rainfall was drier than i^Sffial iiygjtotel^normal in November and December. The rainfall
preceding the site visit and typical f<^|y||!Fason1lfflll5led observation of primary indicators ofhydrology
in the wetlands.

D.METHODS'
OAR141 ••090-0035 (7)(a-g), (8), (1 ri)(a-c). (12)(d-g),(h)(A-J). (15). (16), (17)(a-e)

The methodology used for detenffining the presence of wetlands and delineating wetland boundaries
followed the US. Army Corps of Engineers' (USAGE) Wetlands Delmeation Manual (Environmental
Laboratory 1987) and the Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual:
Western Mountains, Valleys, and Coast Region (Version 2.0) (USAGE 2010), used by both fine Oregon
Department of State Lands (DSL) and USAGE. The National Wetland Plant List (USAGE 2020) was
used to assign wetland indicator status for the appropriate region.

The ordinary high water line (OHWL) of the stormwater ditch was delineated based on the Corps'
Regulatory Guidance Letter 05-05: Ordinary High Water Mark Identification, and as defined in DSL's
Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 141-085-0515, field indicators for the OHWL: a clear, natural line
impressed on the shore or bank; a change in vegetation from riparian (e.g., willows) to upland (e.g., oak,

fir); a textural change ofdeposltional sediment or changes in the character of the soil (e.g., from
sand/cobble/gravel to upland soils); an elevation below which no fine debris (needles, leaves, cones, and

seeds) occurs; and the presence of litter and debris, water-stained leaves, and water lines on tree trunks,
among others.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 20 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

Fieldwork was conducted on January 6, 2023, by Jessalynn Spears, Wetland Scientist, and Clayton

OIinger, Wetland Scientist. Soils, vegetation, and any indicators ofhydrology were recorded at six sample

piot locations on standardized wetland determmalion data forms (Appendix C) to document site
conditions. Soil colors were identified using the MunseH Soil Color Charts Year 2000 revised washable

edition by X-Rite published in Grand Rapids, Michigan.

The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) Web Soil Survey (Figure 4) maps the entire study
area as map unit 70C, Waldport fine sand, 3% to 15% slopes, which is classified as non-hydric with 7%

Psammaquents hydric inclusions CNRCS 2023). Directly south of the study area boundary is mapped as
map unit 13A, Coquille variant silt loam, 0% to 1% slopes, which is classified as hydric.

Representative ground-ievel site photographs are included in Appendix D. A list of vegetation (with

common and scientific names and wetland indicator status) observed on the site is included in Appendix E.

Local Wetlands Inventory (LWI) information is included in Appendix F and the LWI map is provided as
Figure 5. The NWI map for the study area is shown in Figure 6.

E. DESCRIPTION OF ALL WETLANDgftNT^fiTHER NON-
WETLAND WATERS
OAR141-090'0035 (2), (7}(a-g), (8). (9), (10){a-b). (11)(a-c). (12)(e), U 6), (17)(a'e)

are described below and presented in

Wetlands

Two wetlands were identified within the study are"||Th
Figure 7.

Wetland A (0.155

Wetland A is classified as a^J^gt^in^^^rgent (PEM) wetland using the Chssificafion of Wetlands and
Deepwafer Habitats ofthj^T^"teS^^[esv^^w^'m et at. 1979). The wetland is classified as a flats
wetland using the Gw^lHbokfor HyS^geo?rpfvc (HG^/f)-based Assessment of Oregon Wetland and
Riparian Sites: StatewiSt^gssificati^ and Profiles (Adamus 2001). Wetland A is situated in a slight
depression from the surrou^l^g lan^^ape, the topography is gently hummocky, and it extends to abut
the stormwater ditch OHWL<l(|h||!ortheast edge. Standing water was observed up to approximately 4
inches deep in the wettest area hWhe north-middle of the feature at the time of survey. Wetland A's

hydrology is provided by direct precipitation and stormwater mnoff.

Vegetation was dominated by lamp rush, an unidentifiable grass, and broad-leafcat-tail. Soils displayed

Sandy Redox (S5) and Depleted Matrix (F3) hydric soil indicators. Wetland hydrology was demonstrated
by the Saturation (Al), High Water Table (A2), and Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)
hydrology indicators.

The wetland boundary is defined by a distinct change in slope and elevation, a change in plant community

(lamp rush and broad-leafcat-tai! in the wetland to Hlmalayan blackbeny and English plantain [Plantago
lanceofata] In the upland), a change in soils, and presence/absence ofhydrology.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 21 of 122



Peck Property Wetiand and Non-Wetland Waters DeHneation Report

Wetland B (0.006 acre/436 square feet)

Wetiand B is in the southeast comer of the study area and is classified as a PEM flats wetland. Wetland B

is in a slight depression with the land outside of the study area rising approximately 1 foot to meet road
level. Hydrology to the wetland is provided by direct precipitation and stormwater runoff. Vegetation was

dominated by creeping buttercup {Rcmimcuh(s repens) and unidentifiable manicured grasses. Soils

displayed the Depleted Matrix (F3) hydric soil indicator. Wetland hydrology was demonstrated by the
Saturation (Al), High Water Table (A2) hydrology indicators.

The wetland boundary is defined by a change in slope and elevation, a slight change in plant community,

a change in soils, and presence/absence ofhydrology.

Non-Wetland Waters

One stormwater ditch was identified within the study area. The featureji||described below and presented

in Figure 7.

Stormwater Ditch 1 (0.009 acre/118.35 linj
^The stormwater ditch runs a length of 118.35 feet along j||l?studyj|^ea bounda^ and flows generally

southeast. The stormwater ditch enters the study area frd^^^e^Shwest via a culvert under Fleet Street,

flows through a culvert within the study area, and exits theHS^ area to the southeast through another

culvert. The substrate was observed to be made ^BifcisUt loairNg^l organics. Both sides of the stormwater

ditch's OHWL were delineated using a natural li^ii^^^^ori^ bank and water staining along the
vegetation.

Uplands

Uplands were dominated by Himala^^%ckben'y, Bnglish plantain, creeping buitercup, and unknown
manicured grasses. The tr^|plflil||^n ^^]^nd to upland was generally typified by a marked change in
plant community, a ris^^levatioif^l cl¥l|ge in topographical contour, and presence/absence of
hydrology indicators. S%j^le plots in^)land areas lacked wetland hydrology indicators.

F. DEVIATION
OAR141 -090-0035 (7)(e). (12)(f)

tWI AND NWI

The original Wan'enton LWI (SRI/Shapiro, Inc. 1998) identifies a mapped wetland across a portion of the
study area that continues off-site (see Figure 5). SWCA's delineated wetland boundary was generally Is

the same area and less extensive.

The Clatsop County Webmaps servers a modified version of the LWI and maps a locally significant

wetland" in the study area (Ciatsop County 2023) (see Figure 5). Wetland A's delineated boundary is
more extensive and Wetland B is not mapped.

The NWI does not map any wetlands in the study area. To the south of the study area, the NWI identified

a palustrine forested, broad-Ieaved declduous wetland with a seasonally flooded water regime and

partially drained/d itched special modifier (PFOlCd) and a riverine system that is intermittent, streambed,
seasonally flooded, and excavated (R4SBCx) (USFWS 2023) (see Figure 6).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 22 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

G. MAPPING METHOD
OAR141-090-0035 (3). (5), (11)(a-c), (12)(f).(g), (13)(a-g), (IWa'i). (15). (16)

The wetland boundary and sample plot locations were surveyed by SWCA with a Juniper Geode Global
Navigation Satellite System receiver paired with a Samsung computer tablet using Collector for ArcGIS

software. Horizontal map accuracy is less than 1 meter. The wetland delineation map is shown in

Figure 9.

H. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
OAR141-090-0035 (9), (10)(a-b). (12)(h)(A-J)

The study area has no mapped rivers or streams that contain essential salmonid habitat (DSL 2023).

I. RESULTS AND CONCLUSIONS
OAR141-090-0035 (12)(t) /•' <

Two wetlands and one stormwater ditch were delineated within t1w study area. Wetland A is a 0.155-acre

PEM flats wetland with a centroid latitude and longitude of 46^196561 and -123.943129, respectively.
Wetland B is a 0.006-acre PEM flats wetland with a centroid latitude and longitude of 46.196296 and
-123.942989, respectively. The stormwater ditch is 118.35feet,with a centroid latitude and longitude of
46.196643 and-123.942965.

The wetlands delineated in the study area and thepprtiohofthe stprmwater ditch adjacent to Wetland A
are likely to be determined jurisdictional by DSL. "Wetlands A and B may or may not be considered
jurisdlctional by the USAGE. Jurisdictipnal:determin:afjon is the responsibility of the regulatory agencies.

\ \. \

J. REQUIRED DISCLAIMER
OAR141-009-0035(12)(j) .... \ <

This report documents the investigation, best professional judgment, and conclusions of the investigators.
If is correct and complete'tp the best of our knowledge. It should be considered a preliminary

jurisdictlonal determination ofwetlarids and other waters and used at your own risk unless it has been
reviewed and approved in writing byDSL in accordance with OAR 141-090-0005 through 141-090-0055.

K. LIST OF PREPARERS

?(V~^~^-/evr^

Jessalynn Spears, Wetland Scientist

Jessalynn.Spears@swca.com

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 23 of 122



Peck Propei-ty Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

4^-,

Clayton Olinger, Wetland Scientist
Clayton.olinger@swca.com

Chris Moller, Lead Wetland Scientist

Chris.MolIer@swca.com

1 I
/ /

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 24 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wefland Waters Delineation Report

L. LITERATURE CITED AND REVIEWED

Adamus, P.R. 2001. Guidebook for Hydrogeomorphic (HG^f)-based Assessment of Oregon Wetland and

Riparian Sites: Statewide Ctassification and Profiles. Salem: Oregon Department of State

Lands. Available at: https://www.Oregon.gov/dsl/WW/Documents/hydro_guide_class.pdf.

Accessed January 30, 2023.

Cowardin, L.M., V. Carter, F.C. Golet, and E.T. LaRoe. 1979. Chssificafion of Wetlands and Deepwater
Habitats of the United States. FWS/OBS-79/31. Washington, D.C.: U.S. Fish and Wildlife

Service. Available at: http://www.fws.gov/wetlands/Documents/Classification-of-Wetlands-and--

Deepwater-Habi tats-of-the-United-States, pdf. Accessed January 30, 2023.

SRI/Shapiro, Inc. 1998. Wetlands ofWan'enton, Oregon. Technical Report Number 1 Wetland

Conservation Plan Inventory (rev. 1998). prepared for City ofWarrenton. Available at:

https://clocs,dsl.state.or.us/PublicReview/Doc View.aspx?dbid=.0&id=866326. Accessed: January

30,2023.

Clatsop County. 2023. Clatsop County Webmaps. Available at:

https://delta.co.clatsop.or.us/apps/ClatsopCounty/. Y^essed Jan\i^30, 2023.

Environmental Laboratory. 1987. Corps of Engineers W^t^nds Q^neation M6nual. Technical Report Y-

87-1. Online edition. Vicksburg, Mississippi: LT^.X^ntiy/Engineer Waterways Experiment

Station. Available at: https://usace.contentdm.oclc:o^digital/collection/p266001colll/id/4530.
Accessed January 30, 2023. ( ^., "-'..

Google Earth. 2023. Aerial photographs of 590 Vth^v^/Warrepton, Oregon. Available at:
http://earth.google.com. Accessed Ja^uaiy\3Q< 2023.

National Oceanic and Atmospheric ^/dministrMion(N9AA). 2023. AgACIS Regional Climate Center
website. Available at: httpV^gc^.rcc-acis.org/. Accessed January 30, 2023.

.^^\^Natural Resources Consei'^tioh SQrVice^lR^CS). 2023. Web soil survey. Available at:

http://websoil^'vey.nrcs.u^^.goV/app/. Accessed January 30, 2023.

-. 2023. Hydfic Soils List: Clat^pp County Area, Oregon. Natural Resources Conservation Service.

Available at: https://^YWw./pl'cs.usda.gov/publications/Lists ofHydric Soils - Query by Soil

Survey Area Map Unit^Wting.html. Accessed January 30, 2023.

Oregon Department of State Lands (DSL). 2013. Administrative Rules for Wetland Delineation Report

Requirements. Effective Januaiy 1, 2013. Salem, Oregon: Oregon Department of State Lands.

Available at: https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/displayDivisionRules.action?selected

Division=355. Accessed January 30, 2023.

. 2023. Essential Salmonid Habitat. Oregon Department of State Lands Habitat Web Map.

Available at: https://www.oregon.gov/dsl/WW/Pages/ESH"permits.aspx. Accessed January 30,

2023.

Oregon Map. 2023. Clatsop County. Available at: https://ormap.net/gis/index.html. Accessed January 30,

2023.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 25 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Wafers Delineation Report

Oregon Explorer. 2023. Historic Landuse Landcover. Available at:

htlps://oe.oregonexplorer.ii)fo/metadata/pin_or_historic_landuse_landcover_2010.htm. Accessed
through ArcGIS Online: January 30, 2023.

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USAGE). 2005. Regulatory Guidance Letter 05-05. Available at:
http://www.usace.army.miI/Missions/CivilWorks/RegulatoryProgramandPermits/GuidanceLetter

s.aspx. Accessed January 30, 2023.

-. 2010. Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Detmeation Manual: Western

Mowfain, Valleys, and Coast Region (Version 2.0). Edited by J.S. Wakeley, R.W. Lichvar, and
C.V. Noble. ERDC/EL TR-10-3. Vicksburg, Mississippi: U.S. Army Corps of Engineers

Engineer Research and Development Center.

-. 2020. National Wetland Plant List. Version 3.5. Hanover, New Hampshire: US. Army Corps of

Engineers Engineer Research and Development Center, Cold Regions Research and Engineering

Laboratory. Available at: http://wetland-plants.usace.army.my^Accessed January 30,2023.

<rfillL
U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service. 2023. National Wetlands Invento||l^||[able at:

https://www.fws.gov/wetlands/data/Mapper.html. AcgeUled JaJB|||y 30. 2023.

US. Geological Survey. 2023. Warrenton, Oregon. 7.5-1

Available at: https://www.usgs.gov/core-scien£
Accessed January 30, 2023.

top^graphic qlJflrangIe. 1:24,000.
iTgp/tnm-delivery/topographic-maps.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 26 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wefland Waters Delineation Report

Kaiy^u^b
r"~1 Study Area

[^ I Township Boundary

[^ I Section Boundary

Clatsop County, OR
US6S 7.5' Quadrangfe:

Wairentm OR, '16123.B8
8N 1QW Sertfon 08

HAD 1983 HARM StatePlanc
Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet

Intt
^.l%yti 123.943leW

BssstJsfi EsiAteCISfM-.-.e,
«c:«M^ Jsms'y SW

LVxtA'ri 1'31/202i
PfcjwtHo WJ6
La>m1 topa_\.fit;
A.-m TSS?0_Att

A
1:24,000

SWCA
tKVltOKutWW (OHtUtIAOTt

Figure 1. Site location map.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 27 of 122



Peek Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

\^
yy^/^<^A

i^ Study Area

Tax Lot

Source; Tax lot da(a pfovkled by Clatsop County, OR. T8N RWW Sectnn 08,

Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadrangle:

Wwenton, OR, '16)23-88
8N 10WSectton08

HAD 1983 HARM StalcPlane
Oregon North F1PS 3601 Feet

Intl
^6.t965dN 123.943W/

Bssi f.'sp. EinAfCGtS Oi-,'~nt,
tcwsse^ Fsbwaiy Wi3

UpJatCTJ ze'TOi
Piciedti? 78570

lAi-OL/ TrtiLoii_A>.fUl
hyn 7S570_AR

A
1:2,400

SWCA
IHVItOHUtHTAl tOHtUt'AWt

Figure 2. Tax lot map (aerial base).

10

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 28 of 122



Peck Property Wefland and Non-Wettand Waters Delineation Report

CJ Study Area

Souice: Tax lot map provided by Wiw/.ormap.fiel, accessed Januaty 2023, T8N R10W Sc<(ion
08AA.

Clatsop County, OR
U56S 7.5' Quadrangle:

WarTt>(iton,OR.^61^-B6
8N 10V/ Section 08

HAD 1983 HARN StatePlane
Oregon North UPS 3601 R»t

Intl
'16.1965<'N 123.W1°W

t.i^.u'cJ t.i)i?;l
nt.ftitl.i wn

Lit.nit ra'L^fMWp
/w<- ?')/(;_»W

A
1:2,400

SWCA
HmiOHUlHfAl IOhSU»TW1i

Figure 3. Tax lot map (paper base).

11

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 29 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

Mapunit Name

Coquille variant sflt

Waldport fine sand

to 1 percent slopes (hydric)

percent slopes (hydric inclusions)

t^ Study Area

II Soils

SuurcA: USDA NRCS Gitdded Soil Survey Geographk; (gSSURGO) Database (or Oregon, 2020.
http^/datag ateway.nf cs.u Stfa.gov/.

Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadrangle:

Warrenlon, OR, 46123.B8
HAD 1983 HARM StatePlane

Oregon Noilh FIPS 3601 Feet
lull

16.t%5»N 123.943PW

Basa Vap farj AfcC;S Of,'.<;»,
aemxdftbnn y ?0;J

Upda'nd Z,$'202i
PicitKlHo 76576

iAjfUl So'4
tWs. 76576_AR

A
1:2,400

SWCA
IKVItOMUtHtAI. CWimiAMTt

Figure 4. Soils map.

12

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 30 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wettand Waters Delineation Report

^

^ * » ^ » *^y^ »\^^^^f)
'<<k ^ ^ ^ ~,7 ^ ^ \ 'S'c^

»S»^»»^» ^S » » */€y •'''/ » ->» A ^<^

\\ \ \\\ \\\. ^\y. \y.' ^?s^\ i^

»^»^^^»»»»»^^» »\^1
»»^»»*^^»^^»*»

1 ^ Study Area

LWI Mapped Features

"U-8", "9-2" (Clatsop

Co. CIS)

"Ditch" (DSL LWI.
1997)
"Freshwater

r~^—l Wetland" (DSLLWI
1997)

Souice: Wairenton Local WfetlarKj tnvenloiy, 1998. Clatsoti Counly GIS, 2023.

Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadfangte:

Warrentoit, OR. •i6123-B8
HAD 1983 HARN StaiePfane

Oregon NofthFlPS 3601 Feet
Intl

46.196SON 123.943leV/

e.»T/.*Jp £n A'cGIS Or,'r,e.

t:-.<!m^F£t"ja.'y?3
Upd-i'.J ivIW
Picj.xtti.) HW

La,c.jt IVi'l

A,-n 7S576 AR
SWCA
(KVHOHMiHIAl. (OhiUlIAHTI

Figure 5. Local Wetlands Inventory map.

13

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 31 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

i^ Study Area
NWI

Estuarine and Marine
Wetland
Freshwater Forested/
Shrub Wetland
Riverine

Soufce: U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service Nntional Wellands Ifivenloiy, OR, 2020.

Clatsop County, OR
U5GS 7.S' Quadf angle:

Wanenton. OR, •)6123-BS
NAO 1983 HARN StatePlane

Oregon North FiPS 3601 Feet
tntl

16.1%5<N 123.W31°V/

Basfh'ip Ei'i AvGIS Or.'-r.e,
ittWfdftbva'/Wl

V{-)a'.-:J 2v '202.1

Picifld Hi 7iS7(i
L,T;0.,t W;l

/ran 78576 AR

u 100 ?0
IFe-el

•Mc-t^Fb

0 35 M

N

A
1:2,400

SWCA
IHVHOWMtHIAl <OHlUt1Alltt

Figure 6. National Wetlands Inventory map,

14

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 32 of 122



Peck Property Wetland and Non-Wetland Waters Delineation Report

^^ Study Area
\~7^\ Wetland

^B Stomnwater ditch

0 Sample Plot

0 Culvert

^ Photo Point

Source: Wetland dellneaUon data were mapped to sub-meter accuracy by SWCAuslngArcGIS
Field Maps and a Jun'per Geode ONSS feceiver on January 6,2023.

Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadrangle:

Warrenton, OR, 16123-B8
NAD 1983 HARM StatePtane

Oregon North F1PS 3601 Feet
Intl

-)6.1965<N 123.9431dW

Base ktip. EviAicGIS On.r.e.
awei^d Februsiy 2023

Updated E6W23
Pfo.octHo 76578

\.s,<m\. WO_RO(u1i
Apn- 76576.AR

A
1:480

SWCA
IltWIOHUEHIAl (OtltUltAHtt

Figure 7. Wetland and other waters delineation map (aerial base).

15

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 33 of 122



k
9 I

I? is
- 1 ®̂ 1$

< -?> C
r i" ?^

w s Q
.

O
i 3 Q
.

Q
-

s m s CL a
?

s> is d <t
>

s
'

0 fl
;

0
'

3 '5 S6 \~
Q Q

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 34 of 122



> "D "
o m z D x >

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 35 of 122



F~_^ sludyArea Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadfang'e:

Warrenton.OR,;161Z3-BS
8N 10V/ Sectkm 08

NAO 1983 HARN StatePlane
Oregon Kotth F1PS 3601 Feet

Inti
46,l965°N123.943t<'V/

Cfcrf;; ti,vp !<ne

UpJ^.^ 2D-202^
Pic,.-.L-t H.i 7hW

Lr,rj- l;f,iP
A-n nira /.[<

0 (0 20

A
1:1,200

SWCA
IKVltOwmNTAI. (Olim'AHIi

Historic Aerial Photograph (NAIP 1995).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 36 of 122



L * Study Arsa Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadfangte:

Warrenton,OM61;3-BS
8H 10V/ Section 08

HAD 1983 HARN StateMane
Oregon North FIPS 3&01 Feet

Intl
•)6.1965SN 123.943PW

Cffdls tWP.ZWS

Upd^'ed 2.u'202.)
PiO.^lHa 76576

La,WJt NA'P
Arfx- 7W9_W

0 .10

A
1:1,200

SWCA
[imtcmuimM coHiUtiAHii

Historic Aerial Photograph (NAIP 2009).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 37 of 122



^ > Study Area Clatsop County, OR
US6S 7.5' Quadrangte:

Warfenton,OR,16l23-B8
8N 10W Section 08

HAD 1983 HARN StatePlane
Oregon North FIPS 3601 Feet

Intl
^6.1965°N 123.9431'W

Cied.'s HAIP.29H

Upd,i;-aJ 2.SW23
PlE.KtHo 7B576

ta,wt HVP
Aprx-76576 AR

0 40 SO
IFe^t

IMa'eis
0 10 20

A
1:1,200

SWCA
IHVItOHUtHlAl <ONStitTAMTi

Historic Aerial Photograph (NA1P 2011).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 38 of 122



^ * Study Area Clatsop County, OR
USGS 7.5' Quadrangte:

Warrenton,OR,16123-B8
8N 10W Section 08

NAO 1983 HARN StatePtane
Oregon North FIPS 3601 R>et

Intl
•16.1%5aN 123.9431<W

Credl; tWP. W16

Upilj:cd 2.BW23
Pio.KtHo 73576

La,^t tWP
ASH 7e57S_AR

A
1:1,200

SWCA
EWVHOKUtKIAl (OHIULTA-IFt

Historic Aerial Photograph (NAIP 2016).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 39 of 122



APPENDIX B

Precipitation Data

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 40 of 122



Assessing Rainfall for the Preceding 3-Month Period (Antecedent Rainfall)

Prior Month
Most Recent Firstl
1st December
2nd November

3rd October

Jan-22
Feb-22
Mar-22

Apr-22
May-22
Jun-22
Jul-22

Aug-22
Sep-22
Oct-22

Nov-22
Dec-22

Totals:

WETS Rainfall Percentile
30th 70th

8.32
7.89
4.43

12.34
13.06

8.09

Rainfall of prior period was: drier than normal
(sum is 15-18)

Measured
Rainfall
inches
11.54
12.39
4.29

28.22

72^,

(s^Ts 6-9)^

Condition
Dry, Wet,

Normal
Normal
Normal

Dry

Normals

10.59
7.18
7.90
5.80

3.40
2.30
0.83
1.12
2.67

lO.t

?:26

•maHffStUm

Condition Value
(1=dry, 2=normal,

3=wet)
2
2
1

Month
Weight

3
2
1

^
Multiply
previous

2 columns
6
4
1

Sum|

s 10-14), wetter than normal |

11

Climate Period
1991-2020

Since Oct 1st
Departure

from Normal*
-1.58

WYTD*
28.70

Normal
30.28
*As of Date: I

Since Jan. 1st
Departure

from Normal*
-1.33

CYTD*
0.48

Normal
1.81

WETS Table (based on climate period 1991-2020) ari^
Normals are calculated based on climate period 1991-2'

red Rainfall source: http://aaacis.rcc-acis.ora/

SWCA Environmental Consultants Project No. 78576
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 41 of 122



WETS Table

WETS Station; ASTORIA
AIRPORT (PORT OF), OR

Requested years: 1991 -
2020

Month

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Annual:

Average

Total

Avg Max
Temp

49.4

50.9

53.0

55.9

60.5

64.0

67.4

68.7

67.6

60.7

53.6

48.7

58.4

Avg Min
Temp

38.1

37.4

39.0

41.5

46.3

50.6

53.9

53.9

50.5

44.9

40.2

37.6

44.5

Avg
Mean
Temp

43.8

44.2

46.0

48.7

53.4

57.3

60.7

61.3

59.1

52.8

46.9

43.2

51.4

Avg
Precip

10.59

7.18

7.90

5.80

3.40

2.30

0.83

1.12

2.67

6.74

11.05

10.68

70.26

30%
chance

precip less
than

8.17

5.04

5.56

4.19

2.15

1.55

0.36

0.43

1.09

4.43

7.89

8.32

63.03

30%
chance
preop

more than

12.29

8.53

9.37

6.84

4.10

2.75

1.00

1.35

3.25

8.09

13.06 ^
.(.^

12^

^2

Avg number
days p red p

0.1 Ocr more

17

M
16

13

9

7
2

3

6

^12
17

^L7
131 \^

Avg
Snowfall

GROWING SEASON DATES

Years with missing data:

Years with no occurrence:

Data years used:

Probability

50 percent *

70 percent *

* Percent chance of the
growing season occurring

between the Beginning and
Ending dates.

STATS TABLE-total
precipitation (inches)

Yr

1953

1954

1955

1956

W57

1958

1959

1960

'1/24 to
12/28: f
18 days 2432Bys

24 deg =0 28 deg = 32 deg =
0 0

24 deg = 14 28 deg = 32 deg =
4 0

24 deg » 30 28 deg = 32 d(
30

24 F or 28 F or
higher higher

12/30toV 2/5to
25:391 days

Jan

M12.15

18.94

5.96

17.09

4.76

9.61

13.24

10.09

Feb

5.32

9.56

6.33

9.32

6.90

10.96

8.04

8.47

Mar

6.43

4.17

8.64

13.47

9.73

4.62

7.88

7.40

Apr

2.82

4.70

8,04

1.33

3.94

7.03

4.40

5.92

May

4.11

1.66

1.62

1.43

2.82

1.03

3.45

6.60

Jun

2.90

5.48

2.73

4.64

3.31

2.80

3.77

1.87

Jul

0.65

1.77

3.42

0.18

1.63

0.09

0.91

0.01

Aug

3.12

2.24

0.10

2.15

1.34

0.52

0.92

1.84

Sep

3.

90

2.

01

3.

57

3.

76

0.

82

1.

94

5.

56

1.

69

Oct

4.

30

A.

44

12.

24

11.

37

5.

43

7.

33

6.

48

7.

33

Nov

12.

82

10.

10

14.
64

2.

57

7.

68

14.

14

11.

40

13.

91

Dec

12.

21

10.

22

16.
57

9.

02

11.

97

12.
17

8-

36

6.

12

Annl

70.

73

75.

29

83-

86

76.

33

60.

33

72.
24

74.

41

71.

25

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 42 of 122



1961

1962

1963

1964

1965

1966

1967

1968

1969

1970

1971

1972

1973

1974

1975

1976

1977

1978

1979

1980

1981

1982

1983

1984

1985

1986

1987

1988

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

9.03

6.53

4.76

18.50

16.59

8.61

14,95

9.57

12.02

14.46

16.69

10.62

5.72

12.47

15.21

n.67

3.20

8.66

3.83

7.21

2.63

13.98

13.52

6.60

0.69

11.19

10.3B

6.57

8.20

16.09

6.76

9.34

6.27

6.83

21.89

5.61

6.44

4.06

6.77

5.53

6.07

9.57

5.67

5.29

6.67

8.58

2.60

8.38

8.03

7.86

5.22

5.43

n.76

9.60

y
/ .,-8,69

\ \ 10.87

1,66,

8.34 \^

4.09

8.93

5.08

3.60

6.61

11.83

8.57

5.69

1.35

11.34

10.69

5.18

6.13

7.41

0.93

8.79

8.38

10.42

3.16

4.28

9.96

10.04

5.71

10.73

5.66

7.17

9.74

4.40'

/<52.

i.31/

'5,80

ŷ4
5.90

7.00

6.11

8.52

7.86

10.09

5.15

5.65

1.19

6.93

6.48

5.47

7.44

5.76

3.59

5.47

2.90

5.52

4.22

3.84

7.74

4.09

6.82

2.38

4.88

3.90

3.55.//-..--.

~\;^
1.65 ^\

^
/4,68___

4.85 '

^30

6.52

4.26

5.02

2.95

3.58

3.02

3.99

2.27

4.44

9.47

7.49

9.01

4.31

2.90

2.88

1.91

2.27

2.74

2.18

1.37

3.91

3.92

1.92

2.30

1.22

3.16

"y/
2.4lV

.2.20

6.0Q:

1/75

^̂
45

2,97

0.37

3.59

5.34

1.90

3.30

3.97

4.09

3.01

4.00

2.68

0.52

4.74

2.52

1.10

1.87

1.80

2.70

0.75

2.13

1.14

4.81

3.63

1.19

2.97

0.92.,

"?/'
.4:26

2.33.

f.9^
/

V^7
-J,3(

--.7^f'

3.07

1.82

1.57

5.47

1.22

4.53

3.90

3.09

0.94

0.65

3.50

2.58

3.47

1.86

0.55

3.70

2.27

0.50

0.34

1.52

2.59

0.46

0.54

0.22

1.23

0.56

0.31

/> 1.55

2.01

4̂.2C

0.22

2.46

0.44

0.90

0.92

0.64

1.06

0.75

4.39

0.05

0.78

1.69

1,10

0.96

1.64

0.54

0.33

0.24

1.81

0.81

1.30

2.49

1.20

2.21

1,95

1.01

0.19

5.22

0.62

0.08

1.14

0.37

0.46

0.29

2.82

2,55

3.85

2.61

0.81

1.24

0.62

0.63

1.14

0.52

i.n

0.14

0.16

0.88

0.84

1.57

2.31

0.77

0.57

1.49

1.

45

3.

50

2.

20

2.

73

0.

51

2.

18

3,

07

4.

60

6.

55

3.

65

4.

65

4.

72

4.

19

0.

67

0.

04

1.

58

5.

44

6.

93

4.

35

2.

51

2.

77

3.

72

1.

83

3.

16

3.

23

3.

62

0.

95

1.

23

0.

50

G.

67

0.

07

2.

66

0.

12

2.

84

7.

32

7.

40

9.

58

2.

61

3.

97

5.

83

11.

06

8.

03

5.

28

5.

80

6.

34

1.

96

5.

92

1.

85

12.

56

2.

96

4.

38

1.

01

8.

46

2.

79

8.

67

8.

31

1.

87

8.

10

8.

11

5.

45

0.

52

2.

14

5.

30

8.

44

2.

44

4.

10

2.

25

9.

52

8.

34

14.

21

13.

16

n.
15

n.
82

10.

00

5.

94

11.

96

5.

77

9.

86

9.

08

6.

90

14.
93

8.

95

12.

28

1.

45

12.

37

8.

43

7.

87

12.

02

10.

66

9.

62

16.

75

15.

19

5.

96

n.
42

4.

33

13.

06

6.

73

11.
28

10.

53

10.

11

6.

68

12.

S6

10.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 43 of 122



1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Notes: Data missing in any
month have an M flag. A

"T" indicates a trace of
precipitation.

10.59

9.07

12.74

16.20

13.87

n.67

4.60

14.65

12.G7

12.90

5.78

24.10

7.62

9.24

10.71

11.19

12.20

10.80

9.10

6.36

9.19

13.75 \

5.81

n.36

4.93

18,14

15.95

M13.47

M 6.43

5.94

14.52

3.95

10.52

18.26

5.05

3.43

4.95

4.75

6.97

3.30

2.94

10.78

5.49

3.65

7.41

7.42

6.80

6.26

7.40

,,,,6:29

8,53

7̂.25 V

7.66

6.90

12.00

5.55

8.76

4.70

15.31

10.23

9.53

5.46

5.23

6.72

13.45

5.47

7.64

5.66

8.85

8.79

7.70

7.15

11.85

7>-
'<92

i?8er-/

^)}
A1^
/

4.64

2.46

5.04

4.98

6.73

5.80

10.07

6.62

2.49

2.59

3.83

5.59

5.02

5.79

2.85

8.32

3.41

3.00

5.12

4.14

7.67,

8.01

7.40

/6/!4

8.08

.3.31

1.99

8.91

9.47

5.30

1.97

1.37

6.75

2.14

3.96

3.61

3.75

5.61

4.14

3.12

1.7B

2.18

3.36

5.46

3.30

1.63

2.09

5-83\\/

.4.45

4.ai> . -

\ 4/94

- ^
--'5.98

1.29

0.86

5.89

0.44

1.66

3.55

1.16

6.24

2.63

1.38

4.53

1.67

3.43

4.17

2.83

2.32

0.87

1.68

'•"7 /

2.14,'

l.AB

2.58.

/^
?.&8

L.6E

4.82

2.45

1.85

0.73

2.00

2.44

2.49

1.08

2.38

1.92

3.83

0.64

1.92

1.35

0.33

0.78

0.24

0.85

0.14

0.34

0.15

>2.26

^.,9

.2X1

0.4E

0.61

0,6G

1.39

0.50

0.03

1.08

0.39

1.12

0.10

0.09

1.62

0.47

0.22

0.32

1.95

0.71

2.90

0.25

L04

0.61

3.67

0.03

0.10

3.97

0.25

0.56

0.84

2.99

0.92

1.12

0.08

0,06

1.35

0.70

1.34

0.50

0.39

0.54

0.95

0.50

0.49

0.25

2.

19

3.

34

7.

27

0.

66

0.

21

2.

15

0.

89

1.

07

L
91

4.

27

1.

22

1.

44

1.

78

0.

48

3,

26

4.

56

3.

02

0.

22

10.

69

4,

94

2.

13

2.

13

3.

15

2.

40

6.

14

2.

92

5.

00

0.

74

7.

13

n.
14

11,

56

6.

86

3.

54

4.

62

4.

21

0.

93

6.

20

8.

43

8.

89

3.

29

7.

34

4.

16

7.
92

7.

96

3.

97

13.

15

2.

05

8.

61

7.

20

16.

32

8.

94

8.

05

6.

96

4.

52

7.

36

4.

29

17.

47

n.
51

7.

65

19.

60

15.

87

3.

86

14.

21

5.

72

9.

75

6.

70

10.

53

21.

07

5.

07

n.
49

16.

71

12.

45

}Q.

40

13.

84

5.

11

6.

44

14.

80

17.

20

14.
16

7.

77

2.

20

9.

96

14.

02

12,

39

n.
26

20.

3B

7.

99

16.

59

12.

85

5.

81

n.
83

12.
77

9.

80

7.

24

14.

36

10.

75

12.

19

9.

95

5.

76

n.
37

4.

85

14.

63

5.

00

10.
57

20.

53

10.

35

7.

69

9.

91

10.
55

8.

19

12.

55

11.

54

76.

50

92.

70

85.

48

89.

15

87.

58

51.

61

60.

46

56.
10

67.

21

63.

99

69.

68

79.

85

64.

39

62.

84

67.

60

79.

81

68.

89

91.

29

59.

20

72.

87

73.

78

86.

85

84.

00

64.

41

51.
51

64.

54

77.

02

72.

10

6.43

Data missing for all days in
a month or year is blank.

Creation date: 2023-01-25

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 44 of 122



AgACJS

Day Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Ocl Nov Dec

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

0.36

0.37

0.36

0.36

0.36

0,36

0.37

0.36

0.36

0.35

0.35

0.34

0.34

0.34

0.36

0.35

0.36

0.36

0.35

0.34

0.34

0.32

0.33

0.32

0.32

0.32

0.31

0.31

0.30

0.31

0.31

0.28

0.27

0.27

0.27

0.28

0.27

0.27

0.27

0.27

0.28

0.27

0.26

0.24

0.25

0.24

0.24

0.25

0.24

0.25

0.24

0.23

0.24

0.24

0.24

0.25

0.26

0.25

0.26

0.28

0.27

0.27

0.27

0.26

0,26

0.26

0.26

0.26

0.26

0.25

0.26

0.27

0.26

0.27

0.26

0.26

0.25

0.25

0.25

0.26

0.25

0.26

0.25

0.25

0.24

0.24

0.23

0.23

0.23

0,23

0.23

0.23

0.22

0.22

0.23

0.21

0.21

0.21

0.22

0.21

0.20

0.21

0.20

0.20

0.19

0.20

0.19

0.20

0.19

0.19

0.18

0.18

0.17

0.17

0.17

0.16

0.16

0.16

0.15

0.14

0.14

0.13

0.14

0.13

0.13

0.13

0.12

0.12

0.12

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.11

0.10

0.11

0,09

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.09

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.09

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.09

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.09

0.10

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.09

0.08

0.08

0.08

0.09

0.07

0.08

0.08

0.07

0.07

0.07

O.D7

0.06

0.06

0.06

0.05

0.06

0.05

0.04

0.05

0.04

0.04

0.03

0.04

0.03

0.04

0.03

0.03

0.04

0.03

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.02

0.02

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.03

0.02

0.03

0.03

0.04

0.03

0.04

0.03

0,04

O.G4

0.04

0.05

0.04

0.04

0.04

0.04

0.05

0.04

0.05

0.05

0.05

0.0^.

0.05

0.06

0.06

0.06

0.07

0.07

0.07

0.06

0.07

0.07

0.07

0.08

0.07

0.08

0.08

0.08

0.09

0.08

0.10

0.09

0,10

0.10

0.10

0.11

0.10

0.12

0.12

0.12

°-^.

/^̂
3

0.14

G.15

0.15

0.16

0.16

0.18

0.18

0.18

0.18

0.19

0.19

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.21

0.21

0.23

0.23

0.23

0.24

0.25

0.25

0.26

0.26

0.26

0.27

0.26

0.30

0.31

0.31

0.32

0.33

0.33

0.34

0.35

0.35

0.37

0.37

0.37

0.39

0.38

0.38

0,39

0.39

0.40

0.40

0.39

0.38

0.38

0.39

0.38..

0.3<

0.40'

0.39

^0.-27 ^.39

0.28 ) t^,39

0.2^ /0.39

1.2^

0.35

0.36

0.36

0.34

0.35

0.36

0.35

0.35

0.34

0.34

0.34

0.33

0.35

0.34

0.33

0,33

0.33

0.33

0.33

0.34

0.34

0.35

0.35

0.36

\35

0̂^6<
0.3}

0.34'

'034

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 45 of 122



APPENDIX C

Wetland Determination Data &|rms

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 46 of 122



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORlVf - Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Peck Property / Warrenton City/County: Warrenlon / Clatsop Sampling Date: 1/6/2023

Don Peck State: Oregor Sampling Point: SP1

J. Spears, C. Olinger Section, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T.8N,R.10W

ProJect/Site:

Applicant/Owner:

Investigalor(s):

Landform (hiHslope, terrace, etc.}: Terrace

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts

Sosl Map Unit Name:

Are climatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes X No (If no, explain in Remarks)

Are Vegetation ,Soii ,orHydrology significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

.Soil

Lat: 46.196583

Local relief (concave, convex, none);

Long; -123.942989

Concave Slope (%):

Datum: NAD 1983

Waldport fine sand, 3% to 15% slopes NWI ciasssfjcation: None

Are Vegetation , or Hydrology naturally probiematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

SUIVIMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, fransects, important features, etc.

Hydrophylic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soil Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Precipitation prior to fieldwork:
Remarks:

Cat taiis and concave morphology begin where plot placed

x
x
x

No

No

No

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland? Yes X No

, wetland depression surrounded by roads and fill in central/eastern portion of study area.

VEGETATION

Tree Stratum

5. Schoenoplectus tabemaemontani

6.

7.

1% No OBL

9.

10.

11.

100% = Total Cover

Woody Vine Stratum

1.

2.

(Plot size:, 10'r .)

0% = Total Cover

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

Dominance Test worksheet:

tber of Dominant Species

T^t^e OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

(A)

(B)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of; Multiply by:

OBL species

FACW species

FAC species

FACU species

U PL species

Column Totals:

Prevalence Index = B/A =

26

60

141

227 (B)
2.20

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators;

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is ^3.0

4 - Morphoioglcai Adaptations (Provide supporting

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-Vascuiar Plants

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain)

Indicators of hydric soil and wetiand hydroiogy must

be present.

Hydrophytic

Vegetation Yes X No

Present?

Remarks:
Early season delineation and manlcured vegetation

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS
made grass identification impossible al this time for aSi sample plots.

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmenta! Consuitants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 47 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP1
Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of inciicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist)

0-6

6-16

10YR 2/2

10YR4/2

%

100

94

Color (moist)

7.5YR 5/8

% Type1 Loc^ Texture Remarks

LS Moist

6 M LS Moist-Satu rated

Type: C=Cancentration, D=DepIetion, RM=Recfuced Matrix CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains. Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to ail LRRs, uniess otherwise noted.)

Histoso!(A1)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Black Histic (A3)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (At 1)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (31)

Sandy Gieyed Matrix (S4)

X Sandy Red ox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (except MLRA 1)

Loamy Gieyed Matrix (F2)

Depieted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils'

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Other (Explain En Remarks)

{calors of hydrophytic vegetation and

w^yi^i hydrology must be present,

uniesH|1sturbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer {if present):

Type: Rack refusal

Depth (inches): 16 Hydric Soil Present? Yes x No

Remarks: S = sand; Si = siit; C = clay; L = loam or loamy; co = coarser fine;. + = heavy (more day); - = light (less day)

HYDROLOGY
Wetiand Hydrology Indicators:

Primary indicators (minimum of one required; check all that liR^M

Surface Water (A1)

High Water Table (A2)

X Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (83)

Algal Mat or Crust (B4)

iron Deposits (85)

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

inundation Visible on Aerial imagery (B7)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

^Stal^Leaves (B9) (except MLRA

1;%^, an^B)
SaitCrgt(BH)
AqugggTnvertebrates (813)

HiirdgenSulfideOdor(d)

X Oxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1) (LRR A)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondary Indicators (2 or more required)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A, and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Saturation Visible on Aeria! Imagery (C9)

X Geomorphic Position (D2)

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

X FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Raised Ant Mounds (D6) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present?

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

x

x

No

No

No

x Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

16+

9

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes X No
(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring wel!, aerial pholos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
Pit open 40 minutes, water level slowly fiiling in from saturation to form water table.

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Vaileys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 48 of 122



Project/Site:

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Peck Property / Warrenton City/County: Warrenton/Clatsop Sampling Date; 1/6/2023

Applicant/Owner: Don Peck

Investigator(s): J. Spears, C. Olinger

State: Oregor Sampling Point: SP2

Section, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T.8N,R.10W

Landform (hiiisiope, terrace, etc.}: Terrace

Lat: 46,196566

Local relief (concave, convsx, none):

Long: -123.942928

Convex Siope (%): 1

Datum; NAD 1983

Waldportfine sand, 3% to 15% slopes NW) classification: None

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts

Soil Map Unit Name:

Are dimatic / hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes X No (If no, explain in Remarks)

Are Vegelalion ,Soil , or Hydrology significantiy disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

,SoitAre Vegetation , or Hydrology nalurally problematic? (if needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hyd rap hytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soii Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

x
x

Precipitation prior to fieidwork:
Remarks:

On convex side of topography where vegetation communily changes

No

No

No X

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetiand? Yes No X

VEGETATION

Tree Strajtym (Plot size:__3QLT

Herb Stratum (Plot size: 5' r

Dominance Test worksheet:

llMnber of Dominant Species

Tr^ep OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

9.

10,

11.

100% = Total Cover

Woody Vine Straium

1.

2.

(Plot size: 10'r .)

0% = Total Cover

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

.(A)

(B)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Multjplv by;

OBL species

FACW species

FAC species

FACU species

UPL spedes

Column Totais:

0

15

90

0

0

105

x1 =

x2=

x3=

x4=

x5=

(A)

30

270

300 (B)
PrevaSence Index = B/A = 2.86

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2-Dominance Test is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is £3,0

4 - Morphological Adaptations (Provide supporting

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-Vascular Plants

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation (ExpSain)

Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must

be present.

Hydrophytic

Vegetation Yes X No

Present?

Remarks: Entered by: CRO QC by; JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast - Version 2.0
SWCA Projeci No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 49 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP2
Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth

(inches)

Matrix Redox Features

0-2.5

2,5-7.5

7.5-15

Color (moist)

7.5 YR 2.5/1

10YR3/2

10YR3/2

100

95

93

Color (moist)

5YR 4/6

5YR 4/6

% Type1 Loc'' Texture Remarks

LS Moist-dry

LS Moist-dry

LS Moist-dry

Type: C= Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains. Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators: (Appiicabie to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)

Histosol (A1)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

B!ack Histic (A3)

Hydrogen Suifide (A4)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (AH)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Sandy GSeyed Matrix (S4)

X Sandy Redox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (36)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (except IVILRA 1)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depicted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils :

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shaliow Dark Surface (TF1 2)

Olher (Explain in Remarks)

iIHljcators of hydrophytic vegetation and

v/BHIiji^ hydroiogy must be present,

unles^feturbed or probiematsc.

Restrictive layer (if present):

Type: Rock refusal

Depth (inches): 15" Hydric Soil Present? Yes x No

Remarks: S = sand; Si = siit; C = clay; L = loam or loamy; co = coarser + = heavy (more c!ay); - = light (less ctay)

HYDROLOGY
Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Primary Indicators (minimum of one regyired; check all that^l^Ii

Surface Water (A1)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Afgal Mat or Crust (B4)

Iron Deposits (85)

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Inundafion Visible on Aerial Imagery (87)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

E-St^l^LLeaves (89) (except MLRA

SaftCr|i(B11)
irnvertebrates(B13)

SgenSttlfideOdor(CI)

Vxidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilted Soils (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1) (LRR A)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondary [ndicators f2 or more required)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A, and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (810)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

FAC-NeuEra[Test(D5)

Raised Ant Mounds (D6) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present?

Water Table Present?

Saluration Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

x

x

x

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes No X
(inciudes capiliary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
Pit !eft open for 1 hour.

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 50 of 122



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Project/Site: Peck Property / Warrenton CiEy/County: Warrenton/Ciatsop Sampling Date: 1/6/2023

Don PeckApplicant/Owner:

investigators};

Landform (hillslope, tefface, etc.): Terrace

State: Oregor Sampling Point; SP3

J. Spears, C. Otinger Section, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T. 8N, R. 10W

Lat: 46.196290

Waldport fine sand, 3% to 15% slopes

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts

Soil Map Unit Name;

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?

Are Vegetation ,Soii , or Hydrology significantly disturbed?

naturaliy problematic?

Local relief (concave, convex, none):

Long: -123.942960

Concave Slope (%}:

Datum: NAD 1983

NW) classification: None

Yes x No

Are Vegetation ,Soi! , or Hydrotogy

(if no, explain En Remarks)

Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

(If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transacts, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydrsc Soil Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Precipitation prior to fieidwork:
Remarks:
Manicured depression in southeast corner of site.

Yes

Yes

Yes

x
x
x

No

No

No

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland? ygg \ ^o

VEGETATION

Tree Stratum

Dominance Test worksheet:

iber of Dominant Species

TH%^ OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

(A)

(B)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Mu.[tip.[y_.bY^

OBL species

FACW spedes

FAC species

FACU species

UPL species

Column Totais:

300

300 (8)
Prevalence Index = B/A = 3.00

Woodv Vine Stratum

1.

2.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is ^3.0

A - Morpho!ogical Adaptations (Provide supporting

dala in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-Vascuiar Plants

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain)

Indicators of hydric soil and wetiand hydrology must

be present.

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

Hydrophytic

Vegetation Yes X No

Present?

Remarks: Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Vaileys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 51 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP3
Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Deplh Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1 Loc2

0-3

3-18

10YR 2/2

10YR4/1

%
100

85 5YR 3/4

Texture Remarks

StL Moist

15 M SiCL Mosst-satu rated

'Type: C=Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains. Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators; (Applicable to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)

Histosol (A1)

Hislic Epipedon (A2)

Black Hislic (A3)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (A11}

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Sandy Gieyed Matrix (S4)

Sandy Redox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (except MLRA 1)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

X Depleted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils'

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Oiher (Explain in Remarks)

DHlcators of hydrophytic vegetation and

wmiK^ hydralogy must be present,

untes^felurbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if present):

Type:

Depth (inches): Hydric Soil Present? Yes x No

Remarks: S = sand; Si = siit; C = day; L = loam or loamy; co = coarse' ^ne; + = heavy (more day); - = light (less day)

HYDROLOGY
Wetland Hydrology Indicators:

Prjrnan' Indicators (minimum of one required: checkall that^lGBlt

Surface Water (A1)

X High Water Table (A2)

X Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Aigal Mat or Crust (B4)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Surface Soil Cracks (86)

Inundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

jC-StsiftiilLLeaves (B9) (except MLRA

1,'^,antpB)

SaltC®(B11)

itnvertebrates(B13)

!igenSulfideOdor(C1)

)'xidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recenl Iron Reduction in Tiiled Soils (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Piants (D1) (LRRA)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondary Indicators (2 or more requiredl

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A, and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Dry-Season Watsr Table (C2)

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

X Geomorphic Position (02)

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Raised Ant Mounds (06) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present?

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

x

x

No

No

No

x Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

7.5

6

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes X No
(inciudes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if avaHabie:

Remarks:
Hydroiogy immediate!y visible upon opening pit,

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Vaileys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 52 of 122



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM - Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Peck Property/Warrenton City/County: Warrenton / Ciatsop Sampling Date: 1/6/2023

Don Peck

J. Spears, C. Olinger

Project/Site:

Applicant/Owner:

Investigator(s):

Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.):

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts

Soil Map Unii Name:

State: Oregor Sampling Point; SP4

Seclion, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T.8N,R.10W

Terrace

Lat: 46.196328

Local relief (concave, convex, none):

Long: -123.942958

Convex Slope (%): 1

Datum: NAD 1983

WaSdport fine sand, 3% to 15% slopes NWI classification: None

Are climatic/hydroiogic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes X No (if no, explain in Remarks)

Are Vegetation .Soil ,orHydrology significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

Are Vegetalion ,Soi! , or Hydroiogy naturally problematic? (If needed, expfain any answers in Remarks.)

SUIVHVIARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transecfs, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hyctric Soil Present?

Wetland Hydroiogy Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

Precipitation prior to fieldwork:
Remarks:

Upland edge before change in topography/depression.

x
x

No

No

No X

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland? Yes No X

VEGETATION

Tree Stratum

102% =Tota! Cover

Woody Vine Stratum

1.

2.

(Plot size: 10T )

0% = Total Cover

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

Dominance Test worksheet:

iber of Dominant Species

ThX&e OBL, FACW, or FAC: (A)

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across All Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

(B)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: Multiply by:

OBL species

FACW species

FAC species

FACU species

UPL species

Column Totals:

25

79

109

x1 =

x2=

x3=

x4=

x5=

(A)

50

237
20

307 (B)
Pcevatence Index = B/A = 2.82

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is ^3.0

4 - Morphological Adaptations1 (Provide supporting

data En Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-Vascuiar Plants

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain)

indicators ofhydric soil and wetland hydrology must

be present.

Hydrophytic

Vegetation Yes X No

Present?

Remarks: Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental ConsuSEants

Western Mountains, Valieys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 53 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP4

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) CoSor (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1 Loc2

0-8

8-17

10YR4/2

10YR4/2

%
100

93 7.5YR 4/6

Texture Remarks

SiL Moist-dry

SiCL Moist-dry

1Type: C= Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains. '-Location: PL=Pore Uning, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators: (Appltcabte to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)

Histosol(A1)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

Biack Histlc (A3)

Hydrogen Suifide (A4)

Depleted Betow Darit Surface (AH)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (St)

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Sandy Redox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

LoamyMucky Mineral (F1) (except MLRA1)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

X Depleted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils'

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shailow Dark Surface (TF12)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

^cators of hydrophytic vegetation and

wis'Hlt^d hydrology must be present,

unles^teturbed or problematic,

Restrictive Layer (if present):

Type:

Depth (inches): Hydric Soil Present? Yes No

Remarks: S = sand; Si = silf; C = clay; L = loam or loamy; co = coarser fine;, = heavy (more clay); - = light (less clay)

HYDROLOGY
Wetland Hydroiogy Indicators:

Primary Indicators (minimum of onejeciuired: check all that'SljiMl

Surface Water (A1)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Wafer Marks (81)

Sediment Deposits (82)

Drift Deposits (B3)

Algai Mat or Crust (B4)

Iron Deposits (B5)

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

inundation Visible on Aeria! imagery (B7)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (88)

^Stal^J-eaves (B9) (except MLRA

1,'2i|A,arii^4B)

Salt Cr@ (811)

AquqtfUtnvertebrates (B13)

igenSu!fideOdor(C1)

ixidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent iron Reduction in Tilled Soils (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Piants (D1) (LRR A)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondary indicators (2 or more regy.nred.l

Water-Sfained Leaves (B9) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A. and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Geomorphic Position (02)

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Raised Ant Mounds (D6) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations;

Surface Water Present?

Wafer Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

x

x

x

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Wetland Hydroiogy Present?

Yes No X
(includes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if avaifabie:

Remarks:
Pit open 30 minutes, no sign of saturation.

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 54 of 122



Project/Site:

WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM -Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Peck Property / Warrenton City/Coursty: Warrenton / Clalsop Sampiing Date: 1/6/2023

Applicant/Owner: Don Peck

Investigator(s): J. Spears, C. Olinger

State: Oregor Sampling Point: SP5

Section, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T.8N,R,10W

Landform (hiilslope, terrace, etc.); Terrace

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts Lat: 46.196508

Local relief (concave, convex, none):

Long: -123.943294

Concave Sfope (%): 1

Datum: NAD 1983

Waldport fine sand, 3% to 15% slopes NWI ciassification: NoneSoil Map Unit Name:

Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year? Yes X No (If no, explain in Remarks)

Are Vegetation ,Soi) , or Hydrology significantly disturbed? Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

.SoilAre Vegetation , or Hydrology naturally probSematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

SUMMARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Presenl?

Hydric Soil Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

x
x
x

No

No

No

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland? Yes X No

Precipitalion prior to fjeSdwork:
Remarks:
Southwest comer of wetland A, rise in topography to west near roadbed.

VEGETATION

Tree Stratum (Plot sKe:__30Lr

Absolute

% Cover

Herb Stratum (Plot size: 5' r

1. Juncus effusus

2. Typha lafifolia

3. Unidentifiabie grass

4.

5.

6.

7.

9.

10.

11.

100% = Total Cover

Woody Vine Stratum

1.

2.

(Plot size: 10'r )

0% = Totai Cover

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

Dominance Test worksheet:

iber of Dominant Species

T^j^e OBL, FACW, or FAC: .(A)

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across A!l Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

(B)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

Total % Cover of: MulEjDiyby;

OBL species

FACW species

FAC species

FACU species

UPL species

Column Totals:

Prevalence Index = B/A =

20

120

60

200 (B)
2.00

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2 - Dominance Test is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is £3.0

4 - MarphoSogical Adaplations (Provide supporting

dala in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-Vascu!ar Plants

Problematic Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain)

Indicators of hydricsoi! and wetland hydrotogy must

be present.

Hydrophytlc

Vegetation Yes X No

Present?

Remarks: Entered by: CRO QC by; JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valfeys and Coast - Version 2,0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 55 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP5

Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth

(inches)

0-6

6-14

14-16

Matrix

Color (moist)

10YR 3/1

10YR4/1

10YR4/1

%
97

88

95

Color (moist)

5YR 3/4

5YR 4/6

5YR 3/4

5YR 4/6

Redox Features

%
3

7

5

5

Type

c

c

c

c

LOG2

M

M

M

M

Texture Remarks

SiL Moist-sat

SiCL Saturated

Saturated

LS Saturated

Type: C= Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix CS=:Covered or Coated Sand Grains. Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix,

Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)

Histosol(A1)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

BSack Histic (A3)

Hydrogen Suifide (A4)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (At 1)

Thick Dari< Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (St)

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (S4)

Sandy Redox (S5)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (except MLRA 1)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

X Depleted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils'

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF1 2)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

lcators of hydrophytic vegelation and

w§li^d hydroiogy must be present,

unles^H^turbed or problematic.

Restrictive Layer (if present);

Type:

Depth (inches): Hydric Soil Present? Yes x No

Remarks: S = sand; Si = sElt; C = clay; L = loam or !oamy; co = coarse? + = heavy (more day); - = light (less clay)

HYDROLOGY
Wetland Hydroiogy Indicators:

Primary Indicators (minimum of one reauired; check a!l that'

Surface Water (A1)

X High Water Table (A2)

X Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (B1)

Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposits (B3)

AtgaS Mat or Crust (B4)

Iron Deposiis (B5)

Surface Soil Cracks (B6)

Inundation Visibie on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Sparseiy Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

^-St^®,Leaves (B9) (except MLRA

1,1®^, ari^B)

SaltC®(B11)
AqugjSidfnvertebrates (813)

3genSuSf1deOdor(C1)

ixidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced Iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction En Tilled Soi!s (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1) (LRR A)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondan/ Indicators (2 or more required)

Water-Stained Leaves (89) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A, and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Saturation Visibie on Aerial imagery (C9)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Shallow Aquitard(D3)

X FAC-Neutral Test (D5)

Raised Ant Mounds (DG) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present?

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?
(includes capiilary fringe)

Yes

Yes

Yes

x

x

No X

No

No

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

10

3

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes X No

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
Seep in pit v/al! at 3" below ground surface, hydrology readily apparent

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coasi - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 56 of 122



WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM -Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast Region
Peck Property /Warrenton City/County: Warrenton / Clatsop Sampling Date: 1/6/2023

Don Peck

Project/Site:

Appiicanl/Owner:

Investigator(s);

Landform (hillslope, terrace, etc.):

Subregion (LRR): A, Northwest Forests and Coasts

State: Oregor Sampling Poini: SPG

J. Spears, C. Olinger Section, Township, Range: Sec. 8, T.8N,R.10W

Terrace

Lal: 'S6.196517

Locai relief (con cave, convex, none):

Long: -123,943327

Convex Slope (%): 1

Datum: NAD 1983

Soil Map Unit Name: Waldport fine sand, 3% to 15% sSopes NW! classification: None

Are ciimatic / hydroiogic conditions on the site typical for Ihis time of year? Yes X No

Are Vegetation ,Soil , or Hydrology significantly disturbed?

, or Hydrology

(If no, explain in Remarks)

Are "Normal Circumstances" present? Yes X No

Are Vegetation ,Soi! naturally problematic? (If needed, explain any answers in Remarks.)

SUMIVIARY OF FINDINGS - Attach site map showing sampling point locations, transects, important features, etc.

Hydrophytic Vegetation Present?

Hydric Soi! Present?

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Precipitation prior to fieldwork:
Remarks:
Upland adjacent to road

Yes X

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

x
x

Is the Sampled Area

within a Wetland? Yes No X

VEGETATION

Tree Stratum

Herb Stratum (Plot s\ze:__5'_f_

1. Unicfentifjabfe grass

2. Juncus effusus

3. Holcus ianatus

4.

5.

6.

7.

9.

10.

11.

100% = Total Cover

Woody Vine Stratum

1.

2.

(Plot size: 10' r 1

0% = TotaS Cover

% Bare Ground in Herb Stratum 0%

Dominance Test worksheet:

Myfnber of Dominant Species

Ttil||g OBL, FACW, or FAC:

Total Number of Dominant

Species Across Ali Strata:

Percent of Dominant Species

That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC:

(A)

(8)

100% (A/B)
Prevalence Index worksheet:

lQtai,%,C.overof^ MuiEipiv by:

OBL species

FACW species

FAC species

FACU species

UPL species

Column Totals:

30

258

288 (B)
2.85

Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:

1 - Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation

X 2 -. Dominance Test Is >50%

3 - Prevalence Index is £3.0

4 " Morphological Adaptations (Provide supporting

data in Remarks or on a separate sheet)

5 - Wetland Non-VascuSar Plants

Problematic Hydrophylic Vegetation (Explain)

indicalors of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must

be present.

Hydrophytic

Vegetation

Present?

Yes X No

Remarks: Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Anny Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valieys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 57 of 122



SOIL Sampling Point: SP6
Profile Description: (Describe to the depth needed to document the indicator or confirm the absence of indicators.)

Depth Matrix Redox Features

(inches) Color (moist) % Color (moist) % Type1 Loc2

0-7

7-14

10YR 3/2

10YR4/3

%
100

Texture Remarks

S)L dry

100 LS dry

Type: C= Concentration, D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix CS=Covered or Coated Sand Grains. •'Location: PL=Pore Lining, M=Matrix.

Hydric Soil Indicators: (Applicable to all LRRs, unless otherwise noted.)

Histosol(A1)

Histic Epipedon (A2)

B!ack Hislic (A3)

Hydrogen Sulfide (A4)

Depleted Below Dark Surface (At 1)

Thick Dark Surface (A12)

Sandy Mucky Mineral (S1)

Sandy Gleyed Matrix (34)

Sandy Redox (35)

Stripped Matrix (S6)

Loamy Mucky Mineral (F1) (except MLRA 1)

Loamy Gleyed Matrix (F2)

Depleted Matrix (F3)

Redox Dark Surface (F6)

Depleted Dark Surface (F7)

Redox Depressions (F8)

Indicators for Problematic Hydric Soils'

2 cm Muck (A10)

Red Parent Material (TF2)

Very Shallow Dark Surface (TF12)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

i^lcators of hydrophylic vegetation and

wHigiptjd hydrology must be present,

untes^fSturbed or probiematic.

Restrictive Layer (if present):

Type: rock refusal

Depth (inches): 14" Hydric Soil Present? Yes No X

Remarks: S = sand; Si = siif; C = clay; L = ioam or loamy; co = coarser + = heavy (more clay); - = light (less clay)

HYDROLOGY
Wetland Hydrology Indicators: ^

Primary Indicators (minimum of one required; check all that'S^BI^]

Surface Wafer (A1)

High Water Table (A2)

Saturation (A3)

Water Marks (81)

Sediment Deposits (B2)

Drift Deposils (B3)

AlgaS Mat or Crust (B4)

Iron Deposits (85)

Surface Soil Cracks (86)

tnundation Visible on Aerial Imagery (B7)

Sparsely Vegetated Concave Surface (B8)

^-Stat^LLeaves (89) (except MLRA

1,'^,an^B»

Sa!EC®(B11)

Aqu^tnvertebrates (B 13)

glSgenSLi[fideOdor(C1)

ixidized Rhizospheres along Living Roots (C3)

Presence of Reduced iron (C4)

Recent Iron Reduction in Tilted Soils (C6)

Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1) (LRR A)

Other (Explain in Remarks)

Secondary fndicatprs (2 or more required)

Water-Stained Leaves (B9) (MLRA 1, 2,

4A, and 4B)

Drainage Patterns (B10)

Dry-Season Water Table (C2)

Saturation Visible on Aerial Imagery (C9)

Geomorphic Position (D2)

Shallow Aquitard (D3)

FAC-Neutral Test (05)

Raised Ant Mounds (06) (LRR A)

Frost-Heave Hummocks (D7)

Field Observations:

Surface Water Present?

Water Table Present?

Saturation Present?

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

No

x

x

x

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Depth (inches):

Wetland Hydrology Present?

Yes No x
(inciudes capillary fringe)

Describe Recorded Data (stream gauge, monitoring well, aerial photos, previous inspections), if available:

Remarks:
Pit open for 30 minutes, no signs of hydrology.

Entered by: CRO QC by: JRS

US Army Corps of Engineers
SWCA Environmental Consultants

Western Mountains, Valleys and Coast - Version 2.0

SWCA Project No. 78576 Printed 2/2/2023

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 58 of 122



> -a ^ m 2; ^ x a

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 59 of 122



Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 60 of 122



Photo Point 3. SP3 on the right (at auger)
View facing northeast.

Photo Point 4. SP5 on the right (at auger) and SP6 on the left (at shovel).
View facing north.

D-2

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 61 of 122



Photo Point 5. View facing south from north

Photo Point 6. View facing west from east corner of lot.

D-3

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 62 of 122



APPENDIX E

Vegetation List

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 63 of 122



Peck Property
Vegetation List
January 6,2023

Common Name

slough sedge
lamp rush
English plantain
creeping buttercup
Himalayan blackberry
soft-stem club-rush or bulrush

broad-leaf cat-tail

unknown grass

Scientific Name

Carex obnupta
Juncus effusus

P!antago fanceofata
Ranunculus repens
Rubus armensacus

Schoenoplectus tabernaemontani
Typha fatifofia
unknown grass

Wetland Indicator
Status

OBL
FACW
FACU
FAC
FAC
OBL
OBL
w?

Native and Invasive,
Noxious

native

non-native

non-native

invasive, noxious

native

native

Wetland Indicator Status and taxonomy for the Western Mountains, Valleys, apdjBoa^t- region per the National Wetland Plant List

2020 v3.5 Accessed November 2, 2021 NWPL Home v3.4-f9c (arnwftiiif

Native per Hitchcock & Cronquist 2018 and PLANTS database \\ // http://Dlants.usda.oov/

Invasive per Clean Water Services 2020 httD://cleanwaterservJces,bra/^ermits-develoDment/design-construction-standar(

Noxious per ODA 2021: \ ^:- - .,

https://www.oreflon.ciov/ODA/pro9rams/Weeds/Oreci9nNo'xiousWeeys/Paaes/AboutOreaonWeeds.asDX
\\// ~^
_\_/ X

WETLAND INDICATOR STATUS (WIS) ~/y \\ YV
OBL

FACW

FAC /<- -

FACU ^^

UPL

NOL

t&ate Wetl^rtd'PIant.-AlmA&t^tways occurs in wetlands (hydrophyte), rarely in uplands

Facult^ttv6^Vetland Plant; Usually occur in wetlands (hydrophyte), but may occur found in non-weDands

^6u|tativfeJ1ant- Occurs in wetlands (hydrophyte) and uplands (nonhydrophyte)

FaciiItaUve Uplan'd Plant - Usually occur in non-wellands (non-hydrophyte), but may occur in wetlands

Uplan^snt - Almost always occurs in uplands (non-hydrophyte), almost never occurs in wetlands. UPL plants have a
WISJrt o

Nqt'Listed - Plants that are not on the National Wetland Plant List are assumed to be UPL and have no WIS in any
region

SWCA Environmental Consultants Project No. 78576 Page 1 of 1
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 64 of 122



APPENDIX F

Local Wetland Inventory Inforjg^tion

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 65 of 122



;,?P^';TD L''rT'.'r^^' ;b>'.'~^T~^^.'/

^^..t^R-—_
^"f*- F/?B-W-*panj/ul *"' *^

INDEX

CITY OF
TTARRENTON

WETLAND
CONSERVATION

PLAN
INVENTORY

Revised 1997
This tayeatory supcrccdes

previous tDVonforiaa

LEGEND

———— City Umil

Dl;ch

j ~ 1 FrpAinLl.cr •S'rtlsnd

F.:'. ] tMuorino wat.and

?»KW TTntcrn et tba U S./Stntt

WntLwid Numbrr

D liyu-olofljc ynym Co4<?

OCTOBEFt 17

^/^W^r©^§^
1*7 South Main. P.O.Box2<iO
'A?Arr'nn<:&ct, Or*o<>!T- 07^;«

SRI/SHAPIRO/AGCO

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 66 of 122



LEGEND

• • Urban Crovtb Be-undnr/

City Unit

ndnry

VIE^ 1

CITY OF
WARRENTON

WETLAND
CONSERVATION

PLAN
INVENTORY

Rcvisad 1997
This In.Tcn.tory aupercedos

previoua iaventorisa

LEGEND
[I Fraahwu-.cr Itct-und

|—-j Esluorinc wcUand

I J ';otcra of the Li'.S./Stnli

5 Wetland K'-mbo-

Bydrologlc Buuln Cod r

1*7 South Main, P.O. Box ZBO
WwfTrton, Or*o-=" STIAd

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 67 of 122



“Making a difference through excellence of service” 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE  
Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1 

APPLICANT: Don & Karen Peck 

PROPERTY OWNER: Don M Peck  

SUBJECT OF REVIEW: Wetland hardship variance to construct a new single-family 
dwelling 

LOCATION:  590 Seventh Avenue - Tax lot 81008AA05000 

APPLICABLE CRITERIA: WMC 16.208.050 Type III Procedure (Quasi-Judicial). 
WMC 16.32 MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-M) DISTRICT 
WMC 16.156 WETLAND AND RIPARIAN CORRIDOR DEVELOPMENT 
STANDARDS 

DIGITAL FILE: https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-pending-
public-hearing 

HEARING DATE: Warrenton Planning Commission 
April 13, 2023, at 6:00 p.m. 
Warrenton City Hall, 225 S Main Avenue Warrenton, OR 97146 

NOTICE TO MORTGAGEE, LIENHOLDER, VENDOR, OR SELLER: The Warrenton Development 
Code requires that if you receive this notice it shall be promptly forwarded to the purchaser. 

Those wishing to testify on this request may attend the public hearing and fill out a comment 
card prior to thte start of the meeting. Written materials must be received by the Warrenton 
Planning Department no later than 4:00 P.M. on the day of the hearing. Written comments may 
be mailed to Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler P.O. Box 250, Warrenton Oregon, 97146; 
or emailed to rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us.  

At the public hearing, the Planning Commission chairperson will open the public hearing and 
describe the general conduct and procedure for providing public comment. A staff report will be 
given, followed by a statement from the applicant, followed by public testimony, discussion 
among the commissioners, and a decision on, or a continuation of, the request. 

Failure to raise an issue in person, or by or by letter at the hearing, or failure to provide 
statements of evidence sufficient to afford the decision makers an opportunity to respond to the 
issue, means that an appeal based on that issue cannot be filed with the State Land Use Board of 
Appeals. 

PUBLIC NOTICES

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 68 of 122

file://cowdc2/building&planning$/PLANNING%20DEPARTMENT/FORMS/Notices/WMC%2016.208.050%20Type%20III%20Procedure%20(Quasi-Judicial).
file://cowdc2/building&planning$/PLANNING%20DEPARTMENT/FORMS/Notices/WMC%2016.32%20MEDIUM%20DENSITY%20RESIDENTIAL%20(R-M)%20DISTRICT
file://cowdc2/building&planning$/PLANNING%20DEPARTMENT/FORMS/Notices/WMC%2016.32%20MEDIUM%20DENSITY%20RESIDENTIAL%20(R-M)%20DISTRICT
file://cowdc2/building&planning$/PLANNING%20DEPARTMENT/FORMS/Notices/WMC%2016.32%20MEDIUM%20DENSITY%20RESIDENTIAL%20(R-M)%20DISTRICT
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-pending-public-hearing
https://www.ci.warrenton.or.us/ced/page/applications-pending-public-hearing
mailto:rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us


  
“Making a difference through excellence of service” 

 
A copy of the application, all documents and evidence submitted by or for the applicant, and the 
applicable criteria and standards can be reviewed at Warrenton City Hall at no cost and copies 
shall be provided at a reasonable cost. A copy of the City’s staff report and recommendation to 
the hearing body shall be available for review at least seven days before the hearing, and a copy 
shall be provided at a reasonable cost. Anyone wishing to review and/or purchase copies of the 
proposals and/or staff report may do so at Warrenton City Hall, 225 South Main, or may contact 
the Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler with additional questions at 503-861-0920 x120 or 
rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us. 
 
MAILED: March 22, 2023 

 
 

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 69 of 122

mailto:rsprengeler@ci.warrenton.or.us


Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 70 of 122



1

Rebecca Sprengeler

From: halickis@charter.net
Sent: Friday, March 31, 2023 9:36 AM
To: Rebecca Sprengeler
Subject: Wetland Hardship Variance V-23-1

Dear Planning Technician Rebecca Sprengeler: 

Thank you for the Public Hearing Notice regarding the above mentioned application.  A couple of questions come to 
mind after reading the materials provided on the City of Warrenton website.   

1) Given the home site location, where will the fill be needed for the project?  How will the elevation discrepancy
between this property and the adjoining duplexes be rectified?

2) Where is the planned water runoff to go?  Current diking/culvert on 7th Street side?  A new location?  It appears in
the maps provided that the untouched wetlands will border 7th Court and Fleet Street.  How will those 2 streets be
protected from runoff?

3) Affecting Variance Criteria #5:  My understanding is that 7th Court is not a City maintained street, but rather an
easement for the use of the properties built on 7th Court with a 7th Court address.  What use of  this easement, if
any,  will be required for the applicant to move forward with their project?  Where will the property be accessed for
filling/building, etc.?

4) Regarding Variance Criteria#3 that this is the only vacant lot in the area. Lot 3500, directly west of this property,
across from Fleet St, is vacant.

Lastly, I see a mention of the Staff Report regarding this Variance; however, I was unable to locate it. Please feel free to 
email a copy or I can pick it up at City Hall. 

Thank you, 

Lisa Halicki 
598 7th Court 
Hammond, OR  97121 

PUBLIC COMMENT(S)

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 71 of 122



City of Warrenton
Planning Department
225 S Main Avenue • P.O. Box 250 • Warrenton. OR 97146
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351

STAFF REPORT
TO: The Warrenton Planning Commi^s^

FROM: Jay Blake/ Planning Director

DATE: April 13, 2023
SUBJ: Comprehensive Plan Amendment; UGB Correction from Town of

Hammond
Parcel #810050000200
Application Number: CP 23-01

Urban Growth Boundary Background:

The State of Oregon requires all municipalities to establish an Urban Growth Boundary

(UGB) for lands they anticipate could reasonably develop and where municipalities

may extend urban services. For the most part/ the City of Warrenton has maintained its

UGB as its municipal boundary. Some municipaliries have UGB lines that are beyond

the municipal boundary in anticipation of growth. The UGB is established as part of a

municipality s comprehensive plan. Warrenton s Plan was most recently adopted in

2009 with several amendments and updates over the past fourteen (14) years.

However/ the UGB has remained constant since the merger in 1991.

The 1991 merger resulted in the city boundary in the Hammond Marina vicinity as

shown below.

5.B

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 72 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction
Page:2

'V.

}?a——^^n^^^a^i
Current municipal boundary in Hammond Marina Area

Prior to the merger/ the Town of Hammond had two tracts of land that were included in

their UGB but were outside of the city limits. These tracts were described the

Urbanization section of the Town of Hammond Comprehensive Plan as follows:

//An approximately 56-acre area does exist northwest of the present town limits/

however/ which is part of Fort Stevens State Park and which would be appropriate for

recreational and recreational related development. This development could include

facilities which would enhance tourism associated with the nearby boat basin and

active recreation facilities mainly for members of the community. Such a development

would benefit from public facilities/ services/ and regulations which inclusion in the

urban growth boundary would make more feasible.

Objectives:
1. Unincorporated areas to the northwest of the present town limits shown on the Urban

Grozuth Boundary Map - zuhich are needed to aid the economy, satisfy recreational needs

andlor regulate development adjacent to Pacific Drive - will be included in the urban

growth boundary along zuith property presently within Hammond.ff

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 73 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction
Page:3

This plan/ originally adopted in November of 1979 was adopted by Clatsop County in

1982 memorializing the old UGB for Hammond. The adoption included two tracts in

the UGB and established UGB zoning for the tracts. The westerly tract was part of Fort

Steven State Park and Warrenton Hammond School District property and was planned

for additional recreational uses at a more urban level. The northerly tract was owned

by the United States Army Corps of Engineers and was part of the recreational uses

surrounding the Hammond boafc basin (marina). The northerly tract is currently owned

by the City of Warrenton and is the primary subject for this analysis.

—-:UG^_(Wti?ro.P!fferer
....From CliyUmlfsS:. .'

EiS Corps Of Engmeers

Other Property.

'\

TOWN OF HA?a'iWiD URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY tWAP

The newly merged Warrenton/Hammond community worked to transfer planning and

development rules and regulations to a single entity over the next few years. A newly

adopted Warrenton Comprehensive Plan was approved by the City of Warrenton and

reviewed by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development in 2011.

The Comprehensive Plan map/ first adopted in 2005 shows only part of the previously

approved UGB outside of the city limits. The document indicates the land use as Urban

Development (Other Shorelands) for the northerly tract. The approved Comprehensive

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 74 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction
Page:4

Plan Map did not include the westerly tract. No reference is made to either of the tracts

in the text of the plan.

^

FwfK
t\W!

l*»t
a'

</tr &T-+C"^rr

^ffft
f^ftv^mn

t*d»-.[-IA<-3n<

aaam Swift

*>>*.»" h.t>—»-

Cty tl>t«»»i*n < fnltn. rt Un
i^-u >T^*-VI ^l/d Sfr frtTirt^

*^lh-««—I

U,l
1

•(•

C^tfmn
^snv-^t^^
<1*A^l*^

VUW ihh^Hru^ri

TfffVf

<-r-*

i^r+^VA^*

Page 2/ Article 2 (Community Development) Warrenton Comprehensive Plan

To add to confusion/ a second map on the next page of the Comprehensive Plan shows

the UGB to not include either of the previously approved tracts in the UGB even though

the northerly tract was included on the previous page. Again/ no reference to the tracts

or removal from the UGB was included in the text of the Warrenton Comprehensive

Plan.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 75 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction

Page: 5

\\,\ urbar? Growlh Bound8ry & Areas
\\ Affected by Phasing Policy

URBAMOHOWTH BOUNOAHY
UKINCORPORATEO URBAN QROWTHAW
AREAS AFFECTED BY PHASING POLICY

Page 3/ Article 2 (Community Development) Warrenton Comprehensive Plan

The City of Warrenton agreed to establish an Urban Growth Boundary management

agreement with Clatsop County.

Seafarers Park and Marina Enforcement:

The Town of Hammond and later the City of Warrenton had leased the marina and

adjacent lands from the Army Corps of Engineers (ACE). It included areas for parking/

camping and the area known as Seafarers Park. The City of Warrenton later completed

the purchase of the northerly tract from the ACE/ yet a portion of the Seafarers Park

remains located outside of the Warrenton city limits and outside of the UGB.

Because of difficult police enforcement issues in portions of Seafarers Park/ the City

Commission requested that we initiate the process to add the property to the city limits.

More specifically/ police found that city code requirements were not enforceable on

lands outside of the city limits.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 76 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction

Page:6

Current Request:

Because the tracts in question were included in the Town of Hammond UGB/ the

Oregon Department of Lands Conservation and Development (DLCD) has suggested

an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan be processed.

Staff has notified the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development in

accordance with ORS requirements. Pending findings by the Planning Commission/ the

draft ordinances related to the Comprehensive Plan/UGB Amendment and Annexation

will be reviewed again by the City Commission at a meeting in June after consideration

by the Clatsop County Planning Commission and County Board.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 77 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction
Page: 7

Additional Land Owned by the City of Warrenton outside of City boundary and Urban Growth

Boundary

In a separate/ but related/ action/ the City is also considering the annexation of the city-

owned parcel in order to address police enforcement issues cited above.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 78 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment- UGB Correction
Page:8

Proposed UGB Expansion Map

Northerly Tract:

Size: 13.9 acres (land)

Current Ownership: City of Warrenton

Current Use: Camping Park Access/ Seafarers Park and Memorial

Proposed Use: Marina Related Camping and Accessory Uses/ Seafarers Park and

Memorial

Proposed Zoning: Recreational Commercial (Marina Use Area)/ Open Space

Institutional (Seafarers Park and Memorial)

Westerly Tract:

Size: 43.1 acres (land)

Current Ownership: United States Government

Current Use: Parkland

Proposed Use: Parkland with potential for urban services

Proposed Zoning: Urban Growth Boundary (Clatsop County)

i

li< Akt;

<

w*>-

^a
• Yi .

\

Â '

rI
9

I?
i Is y.

I

\ '•.

0,
r>' '

K

•r
f ';

!

[
/.,.1A»'r.

<t.l ^

lir fir

i ,

tlf
1*.;' . "'i'^, • .

>Art
r""-S' .!: . : :

X MhA.T

Jr ' • ' . . ' , /

iK€xtetftigtW^rrento^
^ Urban Growths f f

Boundary I ^^

''.'.

''^

"%.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 79 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment- UGB Correction
Page:9

Section 16.232 notes that any changes to the City Comprehensive Plan/ Text/ Map of

Zoning Map change shall be reviewed as a Type IV. Quasi-judicial Amendment.

Procedurally/ the Planning Commission will conduct a hearing and make a

recommendation to the City Commission based on the staff memo/ public comment/

and the deliberations held by the Planning Commission. The City Commission has the

final authority on the action. In terms of this project/ it also requires Clatsop County to

consider and approve the annexation of land into the City of Warrenton.

The following criteria shall be used when making a recommendation to the City

Commission:

Criteria for Quasi-Judicial Amendments. A recommendation or a decision to approve,
approve with conditions or to deny an application for a quasi-judicial amendment shall
be based on all of the following criteria:

1. Demonstration of compliance with all applicable Comprehensive Plan policies
and map designations. Where this criterion cannot be met, a Comprehensive Plan
amendment shal! be a pre-requisite to approval.

2. Demonstration of compliance with al! applicable standards and criteria of this
Code, and other applicable implementing ordinances.

3. Evidence of change In the neighborhood, or community, or a mistake or
inconsistency in the Comprehensive Plan or land use district map regarding the
property which Is the subject of the application; and the provisions of Section
16.232.060, as applicable.

Suggested Findings:

1. The Warrenton Comprehensive Plan map inadvertently omitted two parcels of

land from the Urban Growth Boundary in the 2005 Warrenton Comprehensive

Plan documents.

2. The proposed UGB map amendment would align the Town of Hammond UGB

with the City of Warrenton Urban Growth Boundary.

3. Since that time/ marina/park land that was previously leased from the US Army

Corps of Engineers by the Town of Hammond and subsequently the City of

Warrenton was purchased by the City of Warrenton. This change in ownership

and continued use of the northerly tract as a park/marina is consistent with the

urban uses of the property. These uses are consistent with the uses and

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 80 of 122



CP-23-01
Comprehensive Plan Amendment - UGB Correction
Page:10

development standards for the Open Space Institutional (OSI) and Recreational

Commercial (RC) zoning district.

4. The westerly tract remains owned by the United States Government and is part

of the recreational facilities associated with Fort Stevens State Park. This area

could be further developed for recreational purposes at an urban density.

5. The City of Warrenton/ by action of its City Commission formally requested the

annexation of the city owned parcel. Said annexation is being considered under

separate ordinances.

Recommended Action:

I move that, based on the findings of fact contained in the staff

memo dated April 13,2023, public testimony and deliberations by
the Warrenton Planning Commission^ the Planning Commission

recommends approval of the draft Ordinance 1262 Amending the

City ofWarrenton Comprehensive Plan Correcting the Urban

Growth Boundary and Adding Related Text and Recommending

Zoning Districts.

Suggested Conditions of Approval:

1. The Ordinance shall be review and supported by the CIatsop County Planning

Commission and Clatsop County Board prior to final review by the Warrenton

City Commission.

2. The Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development shall provide

comments prior to final action by the City Commission.

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the draft

Ordinance with suggested conditions.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 81 of 122



ORDINANCE NO. 1262

INTRODUCED BY ALL COMMISSIONERS
AN ORDINANCE AMMENDFMG THE CITY OF WARRENTON

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CORRECTING THE URBAN GROWTH
BOUNDARY MAP AND ADDING RELATED TEXT AND RECOMMENDING

ZONING DISTRICTS

WHEREAS, the City ofWan'enton and Town ofHammond merged operations in 1991 resulting
in the new municipal boundary for the City of Wan'enton; and

WHEREAS, both the City ofWarrenton and Town ofHammond had approved comprehensive
plans that were reviewed by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development

(DLCD) and both plans included maps showing the location of areas within an Urban Growth

Boundary (UGB); and

WHEREAS, residents and elected officials from the newly combined City ofWarrenton and
Town of Hammond established joint planning efforts that resulted in a new City of Warrenton
Comprehensive Plan fully adopted in 2005 and subsequently amended; and

WHEREAS, the 2005 UGB map for the City ofWarrenton inadvertently omitted two tracts of
land that were part of the Town ofHammonds UGB, resulting in the loss of approximately fifty -
eight (58) acres of land being excluded from the new Wan'enton UGB area. These tracts are

depicted on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, The City Commission passed a motion on February 14, 2023 authorizing the
Warrenton Planning Commission to consider the amendment to the Warrenton Comprehensive

Plan and UGB Map correcting the error; and

WHEREAS, the Warrenton Planning Commission caused the DLCD to be notified in
compliance with Oregon requirements and conducted a public hearing on April 13, 2023, where
the following public comments were entered into the record

1. (Enter Comments Received)

WHEREAS, The Planning Commission made the following findings of fact related to the

request:

1. TheUGB area consists two tracts - a northerly tract of approximately 13.9 acres and a

westerly tract of approximately 43.1 acres of land.

2. The northerly tract is owned by the City ofWarrenton and is pending annexation. The

current Clatsop County zoning is RM (Recreation Management The proposed zoning for

the tract is RC (Recreation Commercial) and OSI (Open Space Institutional).

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 82 of 122



3. The northerly tract site is currently used for Hammond Marina operations and as public

open space known as Seafarers Park.

4. The westerly tract is owned by the government of the United States and is currently part

of the Foil Stevens Park and recreation area. This site is currently zoned UGB (Urban

Growth Boundary) This site would remain outside of the City ofWarrenton and remain

zoned UGB.

5. There are no public sanitary sewer or water improvements on the subject property.

6. The site will remain in the Warrenton Fire District, and Warrenton-Hammond School

District.

7. No extension of public infrastructure is planned for the property.

8. The legal description and location map are shown on Exhibit B.

Now, therefore, THE CITY OF WARRENTON ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Section 2.30 of the 2011 Wan'enton Comprehensive Plan is amended as

follows:

Addition to Text - Bold and Underlined

Deletions —Bold nnd Strike Through

Section 2.320 Urban Development

(1) Growth Management. Due to the large amount of urbanizablc residential land

within the Cityteufe/ While the City of Warrenton^s pliysical size is large, the actual

developable land is restricted by factors such as protected wetlands, public land

ownership and physical land characteristics that make development at urban

densities challenging. As such, the City will adopt a growth management strategy to

insure the orderly conversion of land to urban uses. The City will apply growth

management standards to outlying areas of the City which are largely vacant and

currently have few public facilities in order to:

(a) Make urbanizable land available for conversion to urban uses in stages as

public facilities adequate to serve urban development become available.

(b) Insure the orderly and economic provision of services.

(c) Discourage undeveloped areas from prematurely developing at non-urban

densities.

(d) Maintain undeveloped areas at parcel sizes which can eventually be

converted to urban uses.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 83 of 122



(e) Encourage the development within urban areas before the conversation of

zirbanizable areas.

(2) Urban Growth Boundary: Unincorporated areas adjoining the City limits which are

needed to accommodate urban development shall be included in the Urban Growth

Boundary/ along with property presently in Warrenton/ and will be appropriately

managed. Findings for the placement of the Urban Growth Boundary arc included in

the Background Report. The city recently initiated a planning process with the

assistance of Portland State University to establish a developability matrix that

indicates the areas within the current city boundary that should be further

encouraged or enticed to develop at urban densities. The initial results show that

natural resource concerns stress the importance of making wise land use decisions

and efficient infrastructure investments. The City and Clatsop County shall establish

an Urban Growth Boundary management agreement with Warrenton having the

primary authority for making land use decisions within the Urban Growth Boundary.

(3) No area will be added to the Urban Growth Boundary unless the following factors

are considered:

(a) Demonstrated need to accommodate long-range urban population growth

requirements consistent with Statewide Planning Goals.

(b) Need for housing/ employment opportunities and livability.

(c) Orderly and economic provision for public facilities and services.

(d) Maximum efficiency of land uses within aitd on the fringe of the existing

urban area.

(e) Environmental/ energy/ economic and social consequences.

(f) Retention of agricultural land as defined/ with Class I being the highest

priority and Class VI the lowest priority.

(g) Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural or forestry

activities.

(h) Changes to the urban growth boundary shall also conform to the procedures

and requirements of Statewide Planning Goal 2/ Part H/ Exceptions.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 84 of 122



(i) The City of Warrenton desires to ensure that lands previously included in

the Town of Hammond Urban Growth Boundary are maintained for the City

of Warrenton Urban Growth Boundary.

(4) The City may adjust the Urban Growth Boundary to make minor additions or

subtractions of lands from the Urban Growth Boundary consistent with OAR 660-024-

0070. Such adjustment may include an exchange of lands inside the Urban Growth

Boundary for lands outside the Urban Growth Boundary pursuant to a voluntary

Transfer of Development Rights agreement.

Section 2. Upon annexation, the zoning classification for the land associated with

Hammond Marina operations shall be Recreational Commercial and that part of the property

associated with Seafarers Park shall be zoned Open Space Institutional. (See Exhibit C). The
westerly tract will remain zoned UGB (Urban Growth) under Clalsop County Zoning.

Section 3. Pursuant to ORS 222.520 the City Commission declares that upon effective

date of the annexation, all amiexed territory will be withdrawn for Clatsop County Sheriff law
enforcement and under the jurisdiction of the City of Warrenton Police Department.

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance takes effect upon the county receipt of this

ordinance.

Adopted by the City Commission of the City ofWan'enton, Oregon this _ day of _, 2023.

First Reading:

Second Reading;

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor
ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 85 of 122



Ordinance No. 1261

Exhibit A - City of Warrenton Current UGB

Area of Detail

A .iitit" ' ;..

^i--^ilfn^^
il FT'II ;T'-IT2'iL'r

RI';u;mn^Tm';'.-,^
1' ^^^"i^^Jsip^!;' -^

,<VH'1.T!i !
,9 ps-i.m'il!
l-o ^mi\

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 86 of 122



Ordinance No. 1262

Exhibit B - Proposed UGB Additions (Formerly Town ofHammond UGB)

rltIL>i..Xlrtj'u: !! '(S*.<..;
^4*Y!&' ';'*^'.' i! T*^ ':1

' '• ' r';~ *A'An-- - '

t5i 'i

^^:-i
^--. \ ii'.^!'7
^-1 \ '.^--;

>.'v--I''.f~

A \'^-1

'l^_™?y,Mi^
! .,!l^til.!IlJ:- i1iLJ__i; ;JI;I.!..i!
i T i ^[^:_.- UilZX: iL^:L.

—l5?tte??{Wrr
^tljr^^rGiV^^V

i^rlHhfi&Jrfa*l^JUi'^lJlJ30^QafYi7f;t^ilj^ri- -i~: I l^.ulilHlsi'! I
iiii-H^-11

/ ;'-^
^

!-' IL:L
li-.l':
rt^ujuL-; B(n?'i

'L"{''-!-k;L- --.. '. -_[-

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 87 of 122



Ordinance No. 1262

Exhibit C - Proposed Annexation Zoning Map

~^\ ..mb

':|i ; ! .1 '^/t.*.. . i
itSnJA^i,!'" ;' ~]"'!'t •'•l^fiAv^ ^'

1' .•<AAw_ .

5' JL' uU<i
^uy

' t I ! '1: '?!• i ft' ii

.1-; ;f'ih ilji.^i
-fiili

s . .!',li

'^-v^
ti

' I. ii- 13.^1
!ITIS;V LUJ!in'^

c - ^j-' _' * '^ •' <
hhftvc

j: I ; t? ;

,L-,J!IMI,-^ .^
-s'. A>h

Uti TT\

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 88 of 122



City ofWarrenton
Planning Department
225 S Main Avenue • P.O. Box 250 • Warrenton. OR 97146
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax; 503.861.2351

STAFF REPORT
TO:
FROM:
DATE:

SUBJ:

The Warrenton Planning Commisf

Jay Blake/ Planning Director

April 13, 2023
Annexation Request for that portion of Seafarers Park and the Hammond

Marina that currently Ue outside the boundary of the City of Warrenton.

Parcel #810050000200
Application Number: CP 23-01

Background:

This application is to be reviewed concurrently with the Comprehensive Plan

Amendment relating to the correction in the urban growth boundary (UGB) as outlined

in Ordinance 1262. At the February 14, 2023 meeting the Warrenton City Commission

formally requested the annexation of land which is owned by the City of Warrenton/

but lies outside of the current municipal boundary.

Y.

Current municipal boundary in Hammond Marina Area

5.C

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 89 of 122



ANX-23-01
Annexation - Seafarers Park and Hammond Marina Tract
Page: 2

Seafarers Park and Marina Enforcement:

The Town of Hammond and later the City of Warrenton had leased the marina and

adjacent lands from the Army Corps of Engineers (ACE). It included areas for parking/

camping and the area known as Seafarers Park. The City of Warrenton later completed

the purchase of the northerly tract from the ACE/ yet a portion of the Seafarers Park

remains located outside of the Warrenton city limits. Because of difficult police

enforcement issues in portions of Seafarers Park/ the City Commission requested that

we initiate the process to add the property to the city limits. More specifically/ police

found that city code requirements were not enforceable on lands outside of the city

limits.

Additional Land Owned by the City of Warrenton outside of City Boundary

The annexation of this land would allow for even and consistent enforcement of local

code requirements during the very busy tourism season.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 90 of 122



ANX-23-01
Annexation - Seafarers Park and Hammond Marina Tract
Page:3

Proposed Annexation Tract:

Size: 13.9 acres (land)

Current Ownership: City of Warrenton

Current Use: Camping Park Access/ Seafarers Park and Memorial

Proposed Use: Marina Related Camping and Accessory Uses/ Seafarers Park and

Memorial

Proposed Zoning: Recreational Commercial (Marina Use Area)/ Open Space

Institutional (Seafarers Park and Memorial)

16.260.040 establishes criteria for annexation as follows:

Lands may be annexed only if the City Commission finds that the requested

annexation complies with ORS 222, OAR 660-014-0060/ and the following criteria:

A. Written findings/ which address the following:

1. Existing land uses within annexation area.

2. Existing zoning within the annexation area.

3. Existing improvements: water/ sewer/ streets/ storm drainage.

4. Special districts within the area: water districts/ irrigation districts/ fire

districts/ school districts/ other.

5. Urban services/ the present availability of urban service systems to the

proposed annexation area/ their capacity and cost of extension and/or

improvement to urban standards: sanitary sewers/ streets/ parks; storm

drainage/ water; fire/ power; schools/ police.

B. Compliance with all applicable policies of the City of Warrenton

Comprehensive Plan.

C. The petitioner has adequately addressed infrastructure supply and demand

issues. The annexation is considered timely in that an adequate level of urban

services and infrastructure can be provided by the City upon annexation or a

plan is in place for the provision of such services or infrastructure in a reasonable

period of time.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 91 of 122



ANX-23-01
Annexation - Seafarers Park and Hammond Marina Tract
Page:4

Suggested Findings of Fact:

1. The current and proposed uses for the tract are public open space associated

with Seafarers Park and Recreational Commercial associated with the Hammond

Marina Operations

2. The land is currently under Clatsop County Zoning and is zoned RM

Recreational Management.

3. The area is not currently served by municipal sanitary or water services.

4. No changes in the use are proposed by the land owner (City of Warrenton)

although general maintenance and facility upgrades could occur on the property.

5. The property is tax exempt and is located in the Warrenton Hammond School

District. No other special districts serve the property.

6. The Warrenton Fire Department and Warrenton Police Department will provide

public safety services to the site.

7. The use is consistent with the Warrenton Comprehensive Plan and the pending

Comprehensive Plan Amendment will bring the site into the UGB as it was when

it was part of the Town of Hammond.

8. All fees have been paid.

Recommended Action:

I move that, based on the findings of fact contained in the staff

memo dated April 13, 2023, public testimony and deliberations by
the Warrenton Planning Commission, the Planning Commission

recommends approval of the draft Ordinance 1261 Annexing
Approximately 13.1 Acres of Land to the City ofWanenton and Zoning the

property Open Space Institutional (OSI) and Recreational Commercial

(RC)

Suggested Conditions of Approval:

1. The Ordinance shall be review and supported by the Clatsop County Planning

Commission and Clafrsop County Board prior to final review by the Warrenton

City Commission.

2. The Oregon Departaient of Land Conservation and Development shall provide

comments prior to final action by the City Commission.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 92 of 122



ANX-23-01
Annexation - Seafarers Park and Hammond Marina Tract
Page: 5

Staff recommends that the Planning Commission recommend approval of the draft

Ordinance with suggested conditions.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 93 of 122



ORDINANCE NO. 1261

INTRODUCED BY ALL COMMISSIONERS
AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING APPROXIMATELY 13.1 ACRES OF LAND TO
THE CITY OF WARRENTON AND ZONING THE PROPERTY OPEN SPACE

INSTITUTIONAL (OSI) AND RECREATIONAL COMMERCIAL (RC)

WHEREAS, the City of Warrenton purchased a tract of land from the United States government
in 2019; and

WHEREAS, the tract was part of the City of Warrenton's Hammond Marina operation and the

park known as Seafarers Park as depicted on Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the following described property was part of the purchased land, but it is currently

located outside of the city limits of the City ofWarrenton;

(See Exhibit B); and

WHEREAS, The City Commission passed a motion on February 14, 2023 to request annexation

of the city owned tract in accordance with ORS Chapter 222; and

WHEREAS, the subject propei-ty is adjacent to property zoned Recreational Commercial and is
owned and operated by the City ofWarrenton as the Hammond Marina.

WHEREAS, the Warrenton Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on April 13, 2023
and found that the request meets the criteria for annexation found in the Warrenton Municipal

Code, Section 16.260.030 and 16.260.040, includmg:

1. The site consists of approximately 13.1 acres of land.

2. The parcel is part of Tax Number 81005000200
3. The site is currently used for Hammond Marina operations and as public open space

known as Seafarers Park.

4. The adjacent land is zoned is Recreational Commercial.

5. There are no public sanitary sewer or water improvements on the subject property.

6. The site will remain in the Warrenton Fire District, and Warrenton-Hammond School

District.

7. No extension of public infrastructure is planned for the property.

8. The annexation request will be reviewed by the Clatsop County Planning Commission

and Clatsop County Board.

Now, therefore, THE CITY OF WARRENTON ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The following described tract is hereby annexed into the city limits of the city of

Warrenton.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 94 of 122



See Exhibit B

Section 2. Upon annexation, the zoning classification for the land associated with Hammond

Marina operations shall be Recreational Commercial and that part of the property associated with

Seafarers Park shall be zoned Open Space Institutional. (See Exhibit C).

Section 3. Pursuant to ORS 222.520 the City Commission declares that upon effective date of the
annexation, all annexed territory will be withdrawn for Clatsop County Sheriff law enforcement

and under the jurisdiction of the City of Wan'enton Police Department.

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance takes effect upon receipt of this ordinance by the

Oregon Secretary of State.

Adopted by the City Commission of the City of Warrenton, Oregon this _ day of _,2023.

First Reading:

Second Reading:

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III, Mayor
ATTEST;

Dawne Shaw, CMC, City Recorder

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 95 of 122



Ordinance No. 1261

Exhibit A - City ofWan'enton Tract

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 96 of 122



Ordinance No. 1261

Exhibit B - Proposed Ajnnexation Map and Legal Description

V

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 97 of 122



Ordinance No. 1261

Exhibit B - Proposed Amiexation Map and Legal Description

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

That portion of the property described in Recording Instrument No. 201906266, Cfatsop County Deed

Records that is northwesterly of the existing Warrenton City Limits line, more particularly described as

follows:

Commencing at the Northwest corner of the B.C. Kindred DLC No. 46 in Section 5, Township 8 North,

Range 10 West, W.M. marked by a 3-1/4" Clatsop County Surveyors cap set in a concrete block;

thence North 39a30150" East 1949.79 feet to a 5/8" re&ar and 1-1/2" aluminum cap shown on Clatsop

County Survey B-13340 as monument number 8165, on the Easteriy boundary of the US Coast Guard and

State of Oregon Joint Use Area per Corps of Engineer's Drawing 0-38-21/1 and being the True Point of

Beginning;

thence along the East boundary of said Joint Use Area, South 45a21'36" West 222.92 feet to a 5/6" rebar

and 1-1/2" aluminum cap shown on Ciatsop County survey 8-13340 as monument number 8182;

thence along the Ea5t boundary of said joint Use Area, South 15a30r09" West 202.85 feet to a 5/8" rebar

shown on Cfatsop County survey &-13340 as monument number 8178;

thence along the South boundary of said Joint Use Area, North 82al8r25" West 451.72 feet to a 5/8" rebar

and cap marked "OTAK INC";

thence along the East boundary of said Joint Use Area and the Southerly extension thereof, South

02<>34'36" West 840 feet, more or less, to the City Limits of the City of Warrenton, which is shown on

Survey CS T 4377 as the East Boundary of Military Reservation and is shown on Clatsop County survey B-

13340 as a dashed line with a bearing of North 55tt27'21" East;

thence along said City Limits line North 55d27'2l" East to the Mean low water line of the South Bank of
the Columbia River as it existed prior to dredging of the Hammond boat basin;

thence Nortlwesterly along said Mean Low Water line to a point that bears North 45<121'36" East of the

Point of Beginning;

thence South 4502r36" West to the Point of Beginning.

The bearings for this description are based upon Survey B-13340 on record in the Cfatsop County
Surveyors Office. Situated En the South Half of Section 5, Township 5 North, Range 10 West, W.M., County

of Ciatsop, State of Oregon.

r REGISTERED
!JKOFE<sSlONAL

LAND SURVEYOR
CH o'.-frr.tfrffttH if-U&, ft-ftF LA-d
tmlt-f^-t^tWW^Wi ci.J^S^fi^r^

^11 r.l'rhm M *t Arfvi _J • L<>t»

OREGON
UECEMUD< JO, 2U1U
ANDREW JOHN PLETT

'/&b;58PLy

RENEW?; \?/^\/?A

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 98 of 122



Ordinance No. 1261

Exhibit C - Proposed Zoning

^1^1.«w^&{ I^^ ^
T'"4thAve
%-]1T
1t_iU! WA.

b ^?,'/^

Mi^^.IfhWLj
^y/./-/.

usr;-''''1'^!!^-,'' /
f\ S . •' --^*nAl

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 99 of 122



City of Warrenton
Planning Department
225 S Main Avenue • P.O. Box 250 • Warrenton. OR 97146
Phone: 503.861.0920 Fax: 503.861.2351

STAFF REPORT
TO: The Wan'enton Planning Commission

FROM: Jay Blake/ Planning Director

DATE: April 13, 2023
SUBJ: Mini-storage Cap Ordinance Discussion

BACKGROUND:

At the March Planning Commission meeting/ staff presented information that outlined

staff concerns with the number of min-warehouse sites within the community. The

memo analyzed the number of mmi-warehouse locations and calculated the taxes paid

per acre of mim-warehouse uses. In short/ Warrenton has more locations than any

other area within Clatsop County. Additionally/ the taxes paid per acre of use are less

than half of those paid by other commercial or industrial uses within the city ($6797.49

per acre for mini-warehouse sites versus $15/987.07 per acre for other

commercial/industrial users).

Why is this an important analysis? First/ the City of Warrenton appears to have a large

land base in which we can develop future commercial and industrial uses. However/

the environmental restrictions make it tougher to develop more environmentally

sensitive tracts. This highlights the need for Warrenton to efficiently and effectively

utilize all land to maximize the future tax base for the City. Secondly/ these uses

typically are not high water and sanitary sewer users. In fact/ most do not need access

to municipal sewer or water utilities. Even with a live-in staff person/ a well and septic

could adequately serve these types of uses. The city should reserve commercial and

industrial lands for uses that need municipal utility services.

The March 9th Planning Commission memo also highlighted the changes to the

Warrenton Development code that required additional architectural design features and

restricted the development od new min-warehouse sites along the city's entrance

corridors. The City also required a conditional use permits for all new mini-warehouse

locations. Staff can confirm that this has reduced the number of new projects/ however/

7.A

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 100 of 122



Mini-Warehouse Cap Proposed Ordinance
Staff Report
Page:2

we are regularly asked about these uses and we have received a new proposal for the

development of industrial property adjacent to the new Warrenton Middle School into

300 plus mini-warehouse units. Staff continues to work with the development group to

improve the quality of the design and aesthetics.

Staff provided analysis of the number of mini-storage locations within Clatsop County.

See Exhibit 1. Warrenton currently has almost as many as the rest of Clatsop County

combined.

Exhibit 1.

Mmi-storage

Complexes

Analysis

City

Astoria

Cannon Beach

Gearhart/Seaside

Rural Clatsop

Warrenton

2020
Population

10239

1522

8897

12790

6252

Number of

Sites

1

1

7

4

10

Number of

Sltes/Capita

10239.0

1522.0

1271.0

3197.5

625.2

The Planning Commission directed staff to begin preparation of an ordinance that caps

the number of mini-warehouse urdts/sites within the community to the current level.

This information was presented to legal staff and a draft ordinance is included in this

packet for discussion. The public hearing has not been scheduled at this time.

Staff researched this issue further to determine if the number of rental units in

Warrenton was as high as the number of min-warehouse locations. Staff found that

Warrenton has approximately 6.5 times as many mini-warehouse units per person than

does the rest of Clatsop County. There are more units in Warrenton than in the entire

rest of Clatsop County.

The following chart depicts the current number of mini-warehozise zimts within the city

of Warrenton. There are 1/764 rental units based on tax and on-site inspection records.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 101 of 122



Mini-Warehouse Cap Proposed Ordinance
Staff Report
Page:3

Utilizing the 2022 Warrenton population estimate from Portland State University/

Warrenton has one mini-warehouse uniter for every 3.64 residents.

Exhibit 2. City of Warrenton Mini-warehouse Units (04/04/2023)

Warrenton

Site

1983 SE Dolphin Avenue (Safekeepmg)

605 SE Alt 101 North Coast Mini Storage

1805 South Main

1240 5E ]etty Avenue

51 NE Harbor Ct

65 Iredale Street (Leitch Lease)

1377 5E llth St. (Gronmark)

120-150 NE 5th Street (King Fish/ LLC)

1211 Pacific Drive

2385 SE Dolphin
1100 NW llth Street (Alder Manor)

Number of Units

498
133
155
30

300
100
340
36
14

120
38

1764

Per Capita

0.275

Exhibit 3. Non-Warrenton Mini-warehouse Units (04/04/2023)

Non-Wan'enton Clatsop Comity

Total Units 1600|
.1

Per Capita

0.045

The research indicates that Warrenton has more mini-warehouse rental sites than the

rest of Clatsop County combined. That is more than six (6) times the number of rental

units per person than the rest of the county. The analysis for each area within the

county can be found at the end of this agenda memo.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 102 of 122



Mini-Warehouse Cap Proposed Ordinance
Staff Report
Page; 4

Staff began working with legal advisors to craft an ordinance that placed a cap on the

number of mini-warehouse sites within the community. Legal staff suggested we use

number of units available within the community. A copy of the draft ordinance is

included with this memo.

Since we have had discussion with a property owner on the development of an

additional site within Wan'enton/ we will need to review it based on current code

requirements. As such/ the ultimate number of mini-warehouse units per person will

likely be different than the current analysis would indicate.

As a proposed Warrenton Development Code amendment/ the draft would need to be

review by the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD)

through the typical review process. If the Planning Commission directs staff to move

this forward/ it would be scheduled for the May/ 2023 Plarming Commission meeting.

Staff Request:

The Planning Commission should determine if they want to move forward with the

proposed ordinance amending the Warrenton Development Code establishing a cap on

the number of mim-warehouse units within the City of Warrenton.

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 103 of 122



Wan'enton

3ite

L983 SE Dolphin Avenue (Safekeepmg)

505 SE Alt 101 North Coast Mini Storage

1805 South Main

1240 SE Jetty Avenue

51 NE Harbor Ct

55 Iredale Street (Leitch Lease)

1377 SE llth St. (Gromnark)

120-150 NE 5th Street (King Fish/ LLC)

1211 Pacific Drive

2385 SE Dolphin
1100 NW llth Street (Alder Manor)

slumber of Units

498
133
155

30
300
100
340

36
14

120
38

1764

Clatsop County (Rural)

Site

Jeffers Garden

Kompac Storage

Knappa Storage

Junction 26 Mini-storage

\Tumber of Units

30
100
120
135
385

Gearhart/Seaside

Site

U-Haul

Avenue S Self Storage

Pacificl266 G St (Gronmark)

1099 Pacific Way

Safekeeping Storage

North Coast Plaza

US 101 Mini Storage (Gronmark)

Gearhart Storage

Skunber of Units

43C
Ill
184
V)

19C

u
8£
9Z

113^

Astoria

Site

549 Hamburg Ave.

Number of Units

4]

Per Capita

0.275

Per Capita

0.026

Ij^i.itiibfi^l.'Wi.

'u1 ^li'r'ii

3JE5iiSy)

Per Capita

0.124

Per Capita

0.004

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 104 of 122



Cannon Beach

Site

354 Elk Creek Road

Number of Units

36
Per Capita

0.024

Non-Warrenton Clatsop County

Total Units 1600;

Per Capita

0.045

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 105 of 122



Warrenton

Site

1983 SE Dolphm Avenue (Safekeeping)

505 SE Alt 101 North Coast Mini Storage

1805 South Main

1240 SE Jetty Avenue

51 NE Harbor Ct

65 Iredale Street (Leitch Lease)

1377 SE llth St. (Gronmark)

120-150 NE 5th Sh-eet (King Fish/ LLC)

1211 Pacific Drive

2385 SE Dolphin
1100 NW llth Street (Alder Manor)

sfumber of Units

498
133
155

30
300
100
340

36
14

120
38

1764

CIatsop County (Rural)

Site

Jeffers Garden

Kompac Storage

Knappa Storage

Junction 26 Mini-storage

Slumber of Units

30
100
120
135
385

Gearhart/Seaside

Site

U-Haul

Avenue S Self Storage

Pacificl266 G St. (Gronmark)

1099 Pacific Way

Safekeeping Storage

North Coast Plaza

US 101 Mini Storage (Gronmark)

Gearhart Storage

Mumber of Units

430
Ill
184

17
199

16
88
93

1138

Astoria

Site

549 Hamburg Ave.

[STumber of Units

41

Per Capita

0.275

Per Capita

0.026

Per Capita

0.124

Per Capita

0.004

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 106 of 122



Cannon Beach

Site

354 Elk Creek Road

Number of Units

36
Per Capita

0.024

Non-Warrenton Clatsop County

Total Units 1600
Per Capita

0.045

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 107 of 122



Warren ton

Site

1983 SE Dolphin Avenue (Safekeeping)

505 SE Alt 101 North Coast Mini Storage

1805 South Main

1240 SE Jetty Avenue

51 NE Harbor Ct

65 Iredale Street (Leitch Lease)

1377 SE llth St. (Gronmark)

120-150 NE 5th Sh-eefc (King Fish/ LLC)

1211 Pacific Drive

2385 SE Dolphin
1100 NW llth Street (Alder Manor)

dumber of Units

498
133
155
30

300
100
340

36
14

120
38

1764

Clatsop County (Rural)

Site

Jeffers Garden

Kompac Storage

Knappa Storage

Junction 26 Mini-storage

Slumber of Units

30
100
120
135
385

Gearhart/Seaside

Site

U-Haul

Avenue S SeU Storage

Pacificl266 G St. (Gromnark)

1099 Pacific Way

Safekeeping Storage

North Coast Plaza

US 101 Mini Storage (Gronmark)

Gearhart Storage

Mumber of Units

430
Ill
184

17
199

u
88
93

113S

Astoria

Site

549 Hamburg Ave.

Nfumber of Units

41

Per Capita

0.275

iMc^kai.nii^tiJiini^. /,

^^

Per Capita

0.026

Per Capita

0.124

Per Capita

0.004

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 108 of 122



Cannon Beach

Site

354 Elk Creek Road

Number of Units

36
Per Capita

0.024

Non-Warrenton Clatsop County

Total Units 1600
Per Capita

0.045

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 109 of 122



ORDINANCE NO.

INTRODUCED BY ALL COMMISSIONERS
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A CAP ON THE NUMBER OF MINI-

WAREHOUSE/STORAGE UNITS WITHIN THE CITY OF WARRENTON AND
AMENDING THE WARRENTON DEVELOPMENT CODE

WHEREAS/ the City of Warrenton has allowed mini-sfcorage sites to be developed

within the community; and

WHEREAS/ there are currently 1/764 mini-warehouse units within the city limits (See

attachment A); and

WHEREAS/ the per capita number of mini-storage sites is higher in Warrenton than any

other community in Clatsop County at one unit per 3.64 residents. This ratio is more

than six (6) times higher than the rest of Clatsop County combined; and

WHEREAS/ Mini-warehouse units do not create significant local jobs; and

WHEREAS/ recent tax analysis by the city indicates that the mini-warehouse properties

pay a lower property tax per acre than other commercial or industrial uses within the

city; and

WHEREAS/ Section 3.330 of the Warrenton Comprehensive Plan states/

//It is the City's policy to support the establishment of a variety of well-designed

industrial facilities in appropriate locations in order to expand employment

opportunities/ make use of land best suited for industry/ increase local tax base

and insure a stable economy. ; and

WHEREAS/ the city finds that mini-warehouse units do not typically require municipal

sanitary sewer or water service and could be developed in areas outside of the Urban

Growth Boundaries.

Now/ therefore/ THE CITY OF WARRENTON ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The City of Warrenton hereby places a cap on the development of new mini-

storage units within the city limits. The list of pre-existing mini-storage units is

indicated on Attachment A.

Section 2. The following sections of the Warrenton Municipal Code are amended as

follows:

1 ! P age

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 110 of 122



16.12 DEFINITIONS

Mini-warehouses or Mini-storage sites - means buildings or portions of buildings

which are available for rental for the purpose of storing goods and where the average

floor area rented to an individual customer does not exceed 600 square feet.

16.40 GENERAL COMMERCIAL (C-l) DISTRICT

16.40.030 Conditional Uses.

B. The following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in all other C-l zoned

area within the City Limits of Warrenton:

9. Mini-warehouses or similar storage uses/ subject- to the requirements in Section

16.116.030 (G). In addition to the conditional use permit criteria in 16.220.030/ for new

mini-warehouses/ the applicant shall be required to demonstrate that there is a

deficit of mini-warehouses in the City. For purposes of this section/ a deficit of mini-

warehouses in the City shall mean that the total number of mini storage units within

the City as compared to the City's current population/ as estimated by Portland State

University or another governmental source/ does not exceed 1 mini-storage unit per

people.

16.60 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL (1-1) DISTRICT

16.60.030 Conditional Uses.

B. The following uses and their accessory uses and activities may be permitted in

the 1-1 zone when approved under Chapter 16.220, and subject to the provisions of

16.60.040, Development Standards:

9. New Mini-wai'ehouses or similar storage facilities/ subject to the requirements

in Section 16.116.030 (G). In addition to the conditional use permit criteria in

16.220.030, for new mini-warehouses, the applicant shall be required to demonstrate

that there is a deficit of mini-warehouses in the City. For purposes of this section/ a

deficit of mini-warehouses in the City shall mean that the number of existing mini-

warehouses located within the City as compared to the City's current population^ as

estimated by Portland State University or another governmental source/ does not

exceed 1 unit per _ residents.

2 I Page

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 111 of 122



16.116.030 Architectural and Site Design Standards

G. ^te^age- Unit Faeiti4tesMmi-Warehouses. Where andjvheiLallowed/

faciliticsmim-warehouses shall be subject to the following design/ siting/ and location

standards:

1. Setbacks. New storage unit facilities shall be constructed no closer than 100

feet from the East Harbor Drive right-of-way line. This setback area shall be used

for landscaping/ open space/ public or private amenities/ off-street parking/ other

businesses allowed in the zone; or a combination thereof.

2. Design Standards. New storage unit facilities shall be subject to the following

design standards:

a. Building material requirements in Section 16.116.030(C)(3);

b. Building color standards in Section 16.116.030(C)(5);

c. Mechanical equipment/ outdoor storage and service area standards in

Section 16.116.030(C)(6);

d. Building mass requirements in Section 16.116.030(C)(7);

e. Outdoor lighting standards in Section 1676.116.030(E); and

f. Other applicable design requirements of this section.

3. Location Requirements. New storage unit facilities may be constructed and

operated where allowed by the zoning district/ but not in the following areas:

a. Along the South Main Avenue commercial corridor/

b. Along the Pacific Drive commercial corridor. (Ord. 1242 g 2/ 2020)

Section 4. Effective Date. This ordinance takes effect 30 days after the Second reading

and adoption by the Warrenton City Commission.

Adopted by the City Commission of the City of Warrenton/ Oregon this _ day of

_, 2023.

3 [ Page

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 112 of 122



First Reading:

Second Reading:

APPROVED:

Henry A. Balensifer III/ Mayor

ATTEST:

Dawne Shaw/ CMC/ City Recorder

4 [ Pa ge

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 113 of 122



Attachment A. Currently Approved Mini-warehouse Sites

I Warrenton Mini-warehouse Sites

Site

1983 SE Dolphin Avenue

605 SE Alt 101
1805 South Main

1240 SEJetty Avenue

51 NE Harbor Ct

65 Iredale Street (Leitch Lease)

1377 SE llth St.

120-150 NE 5th Street

1211 Pacific Drive

2385 SE Dolphin

1100 NW llth Street (Alder Manor)

Muiuber of Units

498

133

155
30

300

100

340

36
14

120
38

1764

Parcel Number

S1028D001600/ 81033AA00900
B1027BC01400/ 81027BC02000/

81027BC02701
81028CA03300
81027BA02001/ 81027AB04900

81021AD02000/

81021AD02003/

81021AD08605/ 81021AD08607

81022BD02600/ 81022BD02680/

81022BD02700/ 81022BD02780

81027AA01700/ 81027AA01800/

81027AA01900

81015C000601/ 81015C000602
81005CD05401
81033A000600
81016A000105

5 ] Pag e

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 114 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

Project

forj^r About v Our Work v Events Blog SUBSCRIBE

What is Placemaking?
in

What if we built our communities around places?

As both an overarching idea and a hands-on approach for improving a

neighborhood, city, or region, placemaking inspires people to collectively

reimagine and reinvent public spaces as the heart of every community.

Strengthening the connection between people and the places they share,

placemaking refers to a collaborative process by which we can shape our

public realm in order to maximize shared value. More than just

promoting better urban design, placemaking facilitates creative patterns of

use, paying particular attention to the physical, cultural, and social identities

that define a place and support its ongoing evolution.

With community-based participation at its center, an effective placemaking

process capitalizes on a local community's assets, inspiration, and potential,

and it results in the creation of quality public spaces that contribute to people's

health, happiness, and well being.

When Project for Public Spaces surveyed people about what placemaking

means to them. we found that it is a crucial and deeply-valued process for

those who feel intimately connected to the places in their lives. Placemaking

shows people Just how powerful their collective vision can be. !t helps them to

re-imagine everyday spaces, and to see anew the potential of parks,

downtowns, waterfronts, plazas, neighborhoods, streets, markets, campuses

and public buildings.

I
https://www.pps.org/article/what-is-placemaking 1/8

8.A

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 115 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

Placemaking begins at the smallest scale.

Placemaking is not a new idea. Although Project for Public Spaces began

consistently using the term "placemaking" in the mid-1990s to describe our

approach, some of the thinking behind Placemaking gained traction in the
1960s, when our mentors like Jane Jacobs and William H.

Whyte introduced groundbreaking ideas about designing cities for people, not

just cars and shopping centers. Their work focuses on the social and cultural

importance of lively neighborhoods and inviting public spaces: Jacobs

encouraged everyday citizens to take ownership of streets through the now-

famous idea of "eyes on the street," while Holly Whyte outlined key elements

for creating vibrant social life in public spaces. Applying the wisdom of these

(and other) urban pioneers, since 1975 Project for Public Spaces has gradually

developed a comprehensive Placemaking approach.

Throughout our experience working with over 3,500 communities—in all 50 U.S.

states and in over 50 countries—Project for Public Spaces continues to show

by example how adopting a collaborative community process is the

most effective approach for creating and revitalizing public spaces. For us,

placemaking is both a process and a philosophy. It is centered

around observing, listening to, and asking questions of the people who live,

work, and play in a particular space in order to understand their needs and

aspirations for that space and for their community as a whole. With this

knowledge, we can come together to create a common vision for that place.

The vision can evolve quickly into an implementation strategy, beginning with

small-scale "Lighter. Quicker. Cheaper" improvements that bring immediate

benefits both to the spaces themselves and the people who use them.

https://www.pps.org/article/what-is-placemaking 2/8
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 116 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

When you focus on place, you do everything

differently
Unfortunately, the rigid planning processes of the 20th century have become

so institutionalized that community stakeholders rarely have the chance to

voice their own ideas and aspirations about the places they inhabit.

Placemaking can break down these silos by showing planners, designers, and

engineers the broad value of moving beyond the narrow focus of their own

professions, disciplines, agendas. Experience has shown us that when

developers and planners welcome this kind of grassroots involvement, they

spare themselves a lot of headaches. Common problems like traffic-

dominated streets, iittle-used parks, and isolated or underperforming

development projects can be addressed—or altogether avoided—by

embracing a model of placemaking that views a place in its ent/ret/, rather

than zeroing in on isolated components.

^-^._ ^r^-< ^-ar^ ^- :— -..

Even though cities ultimately fail or succeed at the scale of "place," this is the scale that is so

often overlooked.

Key Principles of Placemaking

The Project for Public Spaces placemaking approach can be a springboard for

community revitalization. Emerging from forty years of practice, our U

https://www.pps.org/article/what-is-placemaking 3/8
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 117 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

Principles of Placemaking offer guidelines to help communities (1) integrate

diverse opinions into a cohesive vision, (2) translate that vision into a plan and

program of uses, and (3) ensure the sustainable implementation of the plan.

Turning a shared vision into a reality-into a truly great place-means finding

the patience to take small steps, to truly listen, and to see what works best in a

particular context.

Just as community input is essential to the placemaking process, it is equally

important to have a mutual understanding of the ways in which great places

foster successful social networks and benefit multiple stakeholders and
initiatives at once. The 11 Principles, along with and other tools we've developed

for improving places (such as the Power of 10), have helped citizens bring

immense changes to their communities-changes that are often far more

extensive than the original vision had imagined.

What Makes a
Great Place?

Project
for Public

Spaces

^

STfiEi

^

^*

M-es

The Place Diagram is one of the tools Project for Public Spaces has developed to help
communities evaluate places. The inner ring represents a place's key attributes, the middle ring

its intangible qualities, and the outer ring its measurable data.

From theory to practice: Placemaking grows into an
international movement

https://www.pps.org/artic[e/what-is-placemaking 4/8
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 118 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

Placemaking is at the heart of Project for Public Spaces's work Learn more

and mission, but we do not trademark it as our property. It belongs about
Placemaking

to anyone and everyone who is sincere about creating great LL"7^.'W:'4

places, and who understands how a strong sense of place can can help

influence the physical, social, emotional, and ecological health of transform

individuals and communities everywhere. We do feel a public
spaces.

responsibility to continue protecting, practicing, and advocating Download

for the community-driven, bottom-up approach that placemaking the bookiet.

describes. To be successful, this process requires great leadership

and action on all !eve!s. Leaders need not, and certainly should not, have all the

answers, and by acknowledging this, and providing space for experimentation

and collaboration, Piacemaking allows an even bolder process to unfold.

Today, the term "placemaking" is used in many settings-notjust by citizens and

organizations committed to grassroots community improvement, but also by

planners and developers who use it as a "brand" to imply authenticity and

quality, even if their projects don't always live up to that promise. But using

"placemaking" in reference to a process that isn't really rooted in public

participation dilutes its potential value. Making a place is not the same as

constructing a building, designing a plaza, or developing a commercial zone.

As more communities engage in placemaking and more professionals come to

call their work "placemaking," it is important to preserve the meaning and

integrity of the process. A great public space cannot be measured by its

physical attributes alone; it must also serve people as a vital community

resource in which function always trumps form. When people of all ages,

abilities, and socio-economic backgrounds can not only access and enjoy a

place, but also p!ay a key role in its identity, creation, and maintenance, that is

when we see genuine placemaking in action.

Placemaking pays close attention to the myriad ways in which the physical,

social, ecological, cultural, and even spiritual qualities of a place are intimately

intertwined, and we continue to be inspired by the visionary placemakers who

have worked to promote this vision for generations.

Placemak'mg belongs to everyone: its message and mission is bigger than any

one person or organization. As a "backbone organization," Project for Public

Spaces remains dedicated to supporting the movement, growing the network,

and sharing our experience and resources with placemakers and

allies everywhere.

Placemaking is

https://www.pps.org/arEic!e/what"is-placemaking 5/8

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 119 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

• Community-driven

• Visionary

• Function before form

• Adaptable

• Inclusive

• Focused on creating destinations

• Context-specific

• Dynamic

• Trans-disciplinary

• Transformative

• Flexible

• Collaborative

• Sociable

Placemaking /s not

• Top-down

• Reactionary

• Design-driven

• A blanket solution or quick fix

• Exclusionary

• Car-centric

• One-size-fits-all

• Static

• DiscEptine-driven

https://www.pps.org/artic[e/what-is-p!acemaking 6/8

Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 120 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

• One-dimensional

• Dependent on regulatory controls

• A cost/benefit analysis

• Project-focused

C/tat/on (MLA 8): "What fs Placemaking?" Project for Public Spaces, 2007,

https://wiA/w.pps.orsf/art/c/e/iA/haf-/s-p/acema/</ngf

^ in f

Comments

Related Articles

(^^nh^^', i(

Want to un!od< the potonila!

or public space in your
cornmunity? C-.iot in 'i'cn.ich!

IMOU!i;li-:f;fd>l)!";.0!i(:f 01;^P..(^.O.i,i(;>W

https://www.pps,org/article/what-is-placemaking 7/8
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 121 of 122



4/4/23, 3:59 PM What is Placemaking?

Stay Connected

Our biwoekly
newslette!' offers

placemaking news,

opportunities, and

more.

Supj3ort Our Work
Together we can

create a world of

coininunity-powereci

public spaces.

(ionlact Us

Privacy Policy

© 1975 - 2020 Project for Public Spaces Made By All. Used By All

https://www.pps.org/artic)e/what-is-placemaking 8/8
Planning Commission Packet April 13, 2023 Page 122 of 122


	1 PC Agenda 04.13.23
	3.A PC Minutes 2023.03.09
	5.A V-23-1 Staff Report
	Staff Report V-23-1
	APPLICATION
	SITE PLAN
	DRAFT DELINEATION
	PUBLIC NOTICES
	PUBLIC COMMENT(S)


	5.B CP-23-1 Staff Report
	5.C ANX-23-1 Staff Report
	7.A Draft Cap on Mini Storage Units
	8.A What Is Placemaking



